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T'l~ 'fASTER: Are you rP~tdy to orn~Ped, 

Mr. MftchPll? 

MR. MITCHFLL~ Thank vou, Your Honor. 

Judge, I went to Austin over the weekend 

u~ over at the Jud{~f~tl Qu~tlifi~atfon~ 

office Rnd I have not rP~Plved thP daily ~noy 

for -- Lnrd, I ~ue~R twn WPPks now. It is 

•·•hPn I don't ha~P i.t or don't re~Pi.ve it. 

J wonder if wP rout" ~et Mr. Pi.oktn to 

send ~hPm down here, Its the Court knows we 

THE MASTER: Yt>!'l, tht> Cnurt does know 

th"'t. I think I wi 11 al'lk Mr. Odam to JZet 

Mr<>. 'Dparc:nn to <>end thPm to us on the bus. 

r had in<>tru~tf>d mv secret~trv to deliver tht> 

ort~lnal<> tl'l Mr. Pi.okin's ,fflce as well. 

Would ynu ~ick tht>m un ~tnd brin~ them 

in, Mr. Mitcht>ll, as tht>y cnme In on the 

bu<>. 

MR. MITCHELL: YPs, I will, Jud!!:e. 

THE llfAS TER: I dnn't havP any of last 

wePk'~ ~riP-fnals, but I dn have the WPP.k 
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MR. MITCHELL: W~ll, th~ Court haA 

trllnr.c-r{nt", r do rf'C'al1 tho!'lP., 

At 11ny r~tte, I ~irl w~nt the rrcord to 

rrfl~c-t, ~tn~ ! don 1 tk\oW wherP th~y Wf'rP., but 

cnn"n'u,.ntly, t hnoe thto Court i!l "Oat'fent 

wf~~ mP, but ! have n~t had thP benefft Of 

11 tr~tn<>c-rfnt. 

THF MASTER: You may. 

MR. MITCHELL: ! would likP to hiiVP. t"'e;e 

rnllrkPd. 

(ThP above mentioned doc-uments were 

marked R-100, 101, 102 an~ 101 for tdentlfi-

cation.) 

MR. MIT ::rtELL: OvPr thr weekP.nd, Counsel 

Coulin~'" 7?, 71 and 74 return". 

llkP tn havp had 71, ho~Pvrr, I am Informed 

It ~nP" not ~~{!It, hnwevrr, lind I would like 

to have ~ome "~ace }Pft tn t~e record, and 

I kno~ thP fnurt doP"n't llkP that, but ~ome-

how that I c~n get a cnoy from thP district 
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~fftc~ in Au~tin, 

I b~14eve we c~n ~et a ro~y there, if 

~here is no ob1Pctfon ~nd waiver of denost-

MR. ODAM: Wh~t does the ~enosition time 

waiver have to do with it? 

MR. MITCHELL: I would lfkP to take Mr~. 

Gibson's d~no~ftion. 

THE MASTER: Becsus~ she is outside of 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: There "'d ll he no wa f ver. 

MR. MITCHEJ,L: Then I wi 11 ARk that her 

deoosttion be taken at such time ~s deemed 

It f~ the key y~ar, Jud~e Meyers. 

THE MASTER: Wrll, havP you tried to 

subooena her and RPP whPther or not shp 

MR. MITCHELL: No, I have not, in view 

of the fact that ft arose late Friday, thf~ 

sttu11tion. 

THE MASTER: 'et. 

MR. MITCHELL: I did not know that I 

would not have the 71 return untfl the 
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._,.IE MASTER: I b~1iPv~ I told you Fri~~y 

Pft~r·ll'lnn 111ftf'r ''fr. Odam told mE' th~t Mr. 

,:ouli·1~ w8!<1 nn h-ts way &nd h111d hi.s t&x 

rrtur~!'l with htm Pxcrot for 71, &nd that it 

was lost, brctruse thE> unclr who rlied, what 

T,E WITNESS: Garci111. 

THE MASTER: That that disann~&r~d and 

" lot of othPr thin~s disaoorarrd whrn thr 

unc-le dif'cl. 

Y~u did know it thrn, becsuse I knPw 

;t at th&t timr myself. 

~1R. MITCHELL: Wt> c1tn )7.~t a subnoE"na 

then ~tnd !'lPP if shr wtl1 honor it. 

May I ornce£"d? 

THE MASTER: Y£"s. 
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o. P. CARRILLO, 

BY MR. MITCHFLL: 

Q I h~nd you what ha~ b~~n msrk~d R-100 and ask you 

if that i~ what you csu~ed tn aoo~ar in the ~vi-

d~ncP 7 

Q I rPf~r to R-91, ~-92 and R-91. You u~E'd thosE' 

Exhfbft~ •~ nart ~f the fnout into R-100? 

A Thiq · s 8 ~~rt nf the ~nformation I had. 

0 And d~d you sl~o use oart of thP tnout of the 

1~1 throu~h 1,7 chPcks as nsrt of thP fnnut I 

LPt mP hand thos~ to you, 151, 2, 1 --

A Yf' ~, ~ tr. 

0 Anrl in 8dditfnn, did you usp nart nf thE' inout 

of ~-69, that ~f'ries, that ts, oickinP nut of 

that qerfes the chPcks and E-75, 76, 82 and 65, 

A Yf'~, ~f.r. 

0 Nnw, 1Pt mP aqk ynu, ol~ase, Jud~P Carr'llo, u~in~ 

thRt fnfnrm~t•nn, that fs, thP data rPfPrred to 
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vnur fncnm~ rn1umn~ 

A Y~c;, c;fr. 

0 ,And ~~fd 0. P. wnuld bP thP rPfPrPncP on thP 

A Y~c;. 

Q Th&t column. naf~ 0. P., thP nnP t~ouA~nd p{ght 

A YPr:, cdr. 

fn 1971, rPflPrt" o~ymPntr: nf c;pvpn t~ous&nd twn 

of nf.nPty-ff.vP th,us,.nd \IIPVPn hundrPd forty•ffvp 

d"'llarc;. 

A I think you A8fd c;pvpnty•two hundrPd, would you 

rhf'ck th&t'> 
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A ThAt {~ {'J thr column tHtf.rl to mE' by Mr. Coulin,. 
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Q All right, sir. Now, in '72, the summary of your 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

work shm· s a grand total of income --

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, if I might, is 

this going to be offered into evidence? If 

it is, I am going to have an objection. If 

it's not, I will not have an objection. 

THE MASTER: That is a proper objection. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, let me see. 

THE MASTER: It is sustained. 

MR. MITCHELL: Let me see if I have any 

further predicate questions. 

(By Mr. ~!itchell) The information that appears on 

100, Judge Carrillo, tell us, please, is any of 

that information made up above and beyond the 

exhibits that were given to you as input into it? 

All of the information that is in R-100, it comes 

out of exhibits that are already in evidence here 

in this <ase. 

All right. Now, let me come on down. Look at 

Page 2 oi the exhibit. 

Yes, sir. 

The bottom paragraph. 

Yes, sir. 

Those totals, let me ask you, where did you get 

the figures for those totals? Are those based on 
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the preceding material? 

Yea, air, with an adding machine tape I added all 

of that from the figures in R-91, R-92 and R-93, 

plus the checks that are in evidence that have 

been paid me by Rudolfo M. Couling, plus the 

checks I have paid Benavides Implement and 

Hardware in the years covered, and I added them up 

and subtracted and got this. 

There is no new input into that last paragraph, 

is there, Judge Carrillo, that does not appear 

somewhere in the document? 

None whatsoever. 

So, line for line, column for column, the data 

that is in R-100 is taken from the exhibits that 

have been previously referred to? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, I notice in 1 73, the checks paid by you to 

Benavides Implement and Hardware, those checks 

are in evidence, aren't they? 

Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I need to get 

a rc:ference from those for someone reading 

the record. 

THE MASTER: Sure. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Judge, I hand you R-58-1 aeries 
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and ask you if that is the source of the data that 

is included in the column 0. P. paid Benavides 

Implement for 1973? 

Yes, sir, that is exactly. R-58-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 

7, 8, 9, 10 and 11. 

All right. And you prepared R-100 then directly, 

or it was prepared under your supervision? 

Yes, sir. 

And the total, the grand total figures I will ask 

you, where they were secured, just mechanical 

computations? 

Just by the adding machine tapes. 

MR. MITCHELL: I offer R-100, then, 

Judge. It's offered for the following 

relevancy, if I might, Judge. It's 

impeachment of Rudolfo M. Couling's testimony 

as regards the initial establishment of the 

Benavides Implement and Hardware as being a 

nickel and dime store that was a product of 

conspiracy between Judge Carrillo and him. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I object to that. 

It was not offered to show that it was a 

nickel and dime operation. It was not 

introduced in to evidence to show a conapirac, 

between the two of them. There is nothing in 
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the evidence to show conspiracy by Judge 0. 

P. Carrillo by Rudolfo M. Couling. 

THE MASTER: Wait, Mr. Odam. I don't 

know about the word conspiracy, but the 

testimony by Mr. Couling was that Ramiro 

Carrillo came to him with the suggestion that 

they open up tr.e Benavides Implement and 

Hardware, as I got it, in order that he, 

Ramiro, who was then either county commissione~ 

or county commissioner elect, could continue 

to do business with Duval County since he 

felt that he couldn't do it with the store 

he and Judge Carrillo owned; that they would 

funnel business through Benavides Implement 

and Hardware and that Judge Carrillo was going 

to be a silent partner. 

Now, whether that is a conspiracy or not, 

I don't know, but that was the thrust of the 

testimony. 

MR. ODAM: I agree with that, Your Honor. 

I agree with the Court's statement as to the 

statement thus far. What I am saying is that 

the store was not set up simply for the purpos~ 

as Ifr. Carrillo would suggest by this testimon,­

to get a few dollars or this total here for 
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the lines of what is suggested by the Court; 

howEver, that testimony of which the Court 

refErred to as a silent partnership with 

Jud(e Carrillo has been excluded. What I am 

sayjng is that the testimony in this record 

thuf far was not intended nor does it 

ind]cate that the store was set up simply for 

the purpose of getting this total amount of 

monEy just for 0. P. Carrillo and I think 

that such a statement of a nickel and dime 

operation ia contrary to what the testimony 

bas been in this case. 

THE MASTER: Well, I will accept that. 

Certainly, though, it was Mr. Couling's 

testimony that at first the store wasn't 

opened very often, just sort of on weekends 

and when somebody wanted something 

MR. ODAM: That's right, sir. This 

statted in 1971 when Ramiro Carrillo came to 

him and approached him to open the store for 

these purposes and then it became more 

operational for more purposes such as we go 

intc here. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, Your Honor, I am 
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sorry. I am not acquainted with Mr. Odam' 3 

objection. 1 stated it for the relevancy 

and for the offering, and if that is going to 

cause a problem, I will withdraw it and let 

the Court make its own conclusion. I don't 

have 

MR. ODAM: I think that will be fine. 

MR. MITCHELL: But the objections were 

leveled last Friday at some of the offer on 

the grounds of relevancy and I thought to 

make a predicate statement, Judge, as to the 

relevancy --

THE MASTER: And you're right in a 

sense. It's strange to object to counsel's 

statement that it's not evidence; that can't 

be accepted as to a statement of counsel. Yo 

offer R-100? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Is there an objection? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, there is. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

MR. ODAM: I would like to take Judge 

Carrillo on voir dire. 

THE MASTER: All right. 
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BY MR. ODAM: 
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Judge Carrillo, you have before you R-100. 

Yes, sir. 

Did you personally type this out? 

No, sir, it was typed out by my direction. I was 

there with Jose Saenz and Roberto Elizondo in the 

office over the weekend, going over all of the 

figures. We added them up. We dictated. I call 

in the figures in R-91, R-92 and R-93 and one 01 

the adding machine tape adding them up and another 

one putting them on the form that we had. 

Would Jose Saenz be the one that prepared your work 

16 ; papers for your income tax returns? 

17 A 

18 

19 Q 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

No, sir, my income tax returns are prepared by 

Mr. Kirkland. 

Work pap1!rs, you didn't remember who prepared t:"le 

work papErs? Was that Mr. Saenz who prepared 

your worl. papers? 

For my income tax, it would be prepared in my 

office. 

MR. MITCHELL: I thought it was voir 

dirE on R-l1JO. He is talking about work 
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papers on income tax returns. 

MR. ODAM: I am trying to identify whl 

Mr. Jose Saenz is. 

MR. MITCHELL: He is the one that 

introduced the work papers. He is intendi~g 

to impeach 182-1 and 183-A, Judge. 

MR. ODAM: I have a statement I asked 

at that time, and that is who --

THE MASTER: The question simply is: 

Is Mr. Saenz the same man who prepared the 

work papers that were furnished to Mr. Kirkla d? 

Part of the papers, the work papers were furnished 

were fixed up by me. Part by Mr. Saenz and partly 

by Mrs. Zenaida Montemayor, who was my secretary. 

Now, Judge Carrillo --

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, Judge. I 

believe the record also reflects that part of 

the work papers have Mr. Kirkland's signature. 

THE WITNESS: And part by Mr. Kirkland. 

THE MASTER: Part of them are yours? 

THE WITNESS: Part of them are mine. 

(By Mr. Odam) On the first column, Judge Carrillo, 

where it says Duval County. 

Yes, sir. 

From what source did you get where it says 4-71, 
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two thousand five hundred and twenty-one dollars? 

All right. Just a minute. 

All right. That is a total for the month of 

May, 1971, adding up seven hundred and fifty 

dollars and seven hundred and seven hundred and 

seventy-three eleven. 

Wait, sir. I am sorry. Now, where do you get --

I am not with you. You say for the month of May. 

It says ~-71; that would be April. 

Oh. 

Now, what figures did you --

They were taken from R-93, from the figures in 

R-93 and adding them up in the tape machines. I 

have the tapes. Mr. Mitchell has the tapes. 

I am sorry. Maybe I didn't make myself clear. I 

was referring to 4-71 where it says Duval County, 

two thousand five hundred and twenty-one dollar9 

and twenty-seven cents; R-93, is the water district 

Oh, I am sCtrry. I had the wrong 

All right. That is May of 1971. 

All right. For May of 1971 --

You mean April of '71? 

I am 11orry. April of '71, I added three hundred 

dollars, two hundred and fifty-four dollars and 

seventy-·:ive cents, one thousand dollars, one 
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thousand eighty-five dollars and one cent, seven 

hundred and twenty dollars, five hundred and forty 

dollars, three hundred and sixteen dollars and 

twenty cents, and I totaled them up and came out 

to four thousand, two hundred and fifteen dollars 

and ninety-six cents. 

THE MASTER: Now, you're still on May. 

He is asking about April. 

No, sir, the first one is April of '71. 

All right, in April. Then, we go to the two 

thousand five hundred and twenty-one dollars and 

twenty-seven cents. 

Yes, sir. 

All right. Now, we took three hundred and eight 

dol1ars, one thousand and eight dollars, nir.e 

hundred and fourteen dollars and forty-sever. cents 

two hundred and ninety dollars and eighty cents, 

and that came up to the figure of two thousand 

five hun•lred and twenty-one dollars and twenty-

seven cents. 

And I ·~o· lid take it then that the B. I. S.D. , the 

second c•>lumn over, for April of '71, the two 

thousand three hundred and forty-six dollars and 

fift:y-ei ~ht cents, --

Yes, sir. 
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Q -- that '!OUld be from R-91 or R-92. I guess it 

A 

Q 

would be R-92 on that particular --

Yes, sir in 4-5-71, for example, we have one 

thou.sand seventy-four dollars and forty-eight 

cents, s:.x hundred and forty-four dollars and 

twenty cf;nts, and six hundred and twenty-seven 

dollars End ninety cents for a total of two 

thousand three hundred and forty-six dollars and 

fifty-ei~ht cents. 

Now, with these R-91, 92 and 93, these total 

payments, would they be -- were these amounts of 

money that you just referred to that you got from 

91, 92 and 93; were they deposited in a bank 

account and, if so, which bank account? 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, .Judge, just a min··1te 

I understood he had him on voir dire. That 

is not legitimate voir dire. He is recroeE:in 

him. He will have an opportunity to take 

him all over the place. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, the purpose of 

my o'>jection --

MR. MITCHELL: I might add, .Judge 

Meyers, this is the exhibit the Court asked 

we prepare over the weekend. 

THE MASTER: I understand. 
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MR. MITCHELL: I would suggest if he 

hns some legitimate voir dire, but he has 

gone beyond the voir dire and he wants to 

knoP the quality of the reflection of the 

exh:.bit, and that's not a part of voir dire 

and we object. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Odam, what is the 

nat1re of the objection you're attempting to 

dev£lop by voir dire? 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, the nature of the 

obj1:ction is this: That I would attempt to 

sho'7 that the statements that are on here 

wit'.t respect to Duval County, B.I.S.D., 

wat,!r district and total and the amounts of 

mon•!Y paid into Judge 0. P. Carrillo and the 

0 .. , paid Benavides Implement and Hardware, 

the' confuse two different bank accounts, and 

tak•m by itself would tend to confuse the 

evi1ence in the case by the mere offer and 

the admission of this piece of evidenee, 

For example, the Duval County, the 

B.I.S.D. and the water district were taken 

from those two. They were monies deposited 

apparently, 1 ,.,ould take it, into the San 

Diego account. 
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THE MASTER: All right. Now, you're 

certainly welcome to that. 

MR. ODAM: Well, that is what I was 

beginning to do. 

THE MASTER: I thought your last queatio , 

thotgh, had to do 

MR. ODAM: I asked him that. From what 

source --

MR. MITCHELL: If that is a defect, ·~ 

thirk it's in his own exhibit furnished to 

me by the Exhibits 91, 92 and 93. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, it's not my 

exhibits. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is where I got it 

from, 91, 92 and 93. 
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THE MASTF.'R.: I ~t11 lPt you develo~ that, 

to thP WP{~ht. 

You m~y ~rocPP~. Mr. Od~m. 

MR. ODAM: Your Hrmor, if I mf.Rht "ro-

Q (By Mr. Od~m:) TakP the fir~t one, for e~nle, 

,JuclJ!e Carrillo, whPre it sayR Duval County. 

that A total amount of money that ~o,.~ into the 

San Dfe~o account or the Rtn Gran~e City account 

or bot~ a~~ounts? 

A I took that from R-91 to R-9~. which you furnished 

us at our rPnue~t. WP orPsume t~at the work of 

the Attor~PV General was corrPct. 

0 My nuPstion wail!, tHd that amount of mrmey frmn 

91, 97 and 9~. t~ that thP amount of money that fs 

fnten~ed to be from Duv~l County to thP s~n DiPJ!O 

or Rio Gr~nde Cftv bank? 

MR. MITC'lELL: WP oh1ect. It i.s not 

~ lP~itfm~tP voir dirP. 

thPn we wnuld lfkP to know if th~t is where 

the d~ttlt cltmP from, we don 1 t kno'fl•. 

THE ~ASTFR: WPll, 1Pt 1
!'1 let the witness 

answer that nuestion rather than you, Mr. 
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Mf tchf>ll. 

THE WITNESS: I ~on't know which bank 

.acco~nt~ h~ df>nos{ted th~s~ checks ln and I 

didn't know hf> rf>cf>lved thf>SP ch~cks a~ well. 

0 Sn thf> am~unt of money you tndic&tf>d for Aoril, 

1971, was totalfnR un what wa~ on those thrf>e 

Exh~bits? 

A T~at is rtght. 

0 And that nf Rht hav~ bPen in San Df e~o or oart of 

it ln Rio Grandf> City? 

A Or i.n ME'xtco. 

Q Or in Caml!l or •··hPrevttr. 

MR. ~ITCHELL: And lt doesn't include 

~f>neral nublic tncomf> from ~ales. 

Q And I take it that would bP thP same tpstimony 

trict, t~at is nnt anythin~ P~ceot thP total 

amount of the mon~v you ~ot from R-91, 92 and 93? 

A CorrP.ct. 

Q And t~P oaid 0. P. Carrillo acc~unt. thP onP thou-

!land and ~~~ht dollars, what bank account was that? 

A Thoc;~ are th~ ch .. t'ks t~at you havP introduc~d in 

PvldPncP hPrP fn this hParln~ as monies R. M. 

CoulinR "DIIfd m~. 
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Q T.Jh.qt b~tnk account ~·'"'!'! th"t onf' thousand And ei.~ht 

3 A It {q ~tn !yhfbft that iR herP in Pvfdf'nce and I 

4 h~ve those w~th mf', both "q to the ones tht were 

5 natd to me Rnrl bo~h 8!'1 to the ones I oaid Mr. 

6 r.nulin~ And I havP the actual Exhibits and co~if'~ 

7 

8 Q And the 0. P. naf.d out sccount, b thlll:money 

9 deno~i.ted tn Rio Grande City account or the San 

10 Dfe~o ACC')unt? 

11 A I don't k·tow ,.•herP he deno!'litPrl thf'm. This ls 

12 rhf'ck~ I ,atd to Rudo1fo Coulin~ And, a~ain, I had 

13 

U Q And t~f' t~tAl nsfd on the !'leron~ na~e. 1971 throu~h 

IS 1975 by thP ~i.!'ttrict, I t~tke -1 t thAt was si.m~1y 

16 from R-91 t~rou~h q1? 

17 A Yes, t~f' total of t;rf'e hundred ~evP.nty thousand 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

thrPP hundrP.d Pi.Rhty-two do1l~trs twenty-three cents 

romeq frrm addin~ the DuvAl County column and the 

Bf'n~tvfde~ Indrnendent School District column and 

the ~.•atPt cJfc;trict column, or tl,8t i.!'l the thrPf' 

total~ of the year 1971, 72 and 7~. 

Ther thf' twf'nty thousAnd sevf'n hundred for•y-

four dollars ten cf'nts fs a tnt~tl that 0. P. 

C~trrillo oafd Benavides Imn1f'ment end H~trdwere 
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for ti-)r trotal of thrPE' hunfirpfl ni.nety-onE> thousand 

2 onf' hundr•·d twPnty-si.x dollltr~ thirty-three cent!l, 

3 then thP ·ot~l Ben~vtde~ Imnlempnt ~nd HnrdwarP 

4 "11ifl 0. P cnlumn come>~ from t;e column •·•htch is 

5 ~tat~d aA ~uch, Adflin~ all nf the checks natd to 

6 mf' .ttnd in ~ludin~ the oneA n11i.d dirf'ctly to the> 

., 
~in Gran~~ City bank for f{veo thousand srveon 

8 hunrlrf'rl t•f'nty-ffvr doll.ttr~ th 4 rty-four cents, and 

9 that tota' '~ twelve thous~nd nine hundreod thirty-

10 

11 Q The t'ltlll 1f>nllvf.d,-.s ImnlemPnt o~id to 0. P. 

12 C11rrfllo, i~ that ~ totalanount of money Benavidf's 

13 

14 A I don't l< :tow, I undertt:tand you have c:omP more 

15 checks which I havP not sPen. 

17 11nd Hard~llrP, do you know ~hat hank .ttccount that 

18 waA drno~ited in? 

19 A No, c: tr. 

21 A YfQ, c:i.r, Pnd didn't reflect the bank account. 

22 

24 

25 

~. ODAM: Your Honor, my oh1Pction to 

r;e 'ntroduct•on of R-100 would he in this 

form. 

Mr. Mitchell. ha«~ aAked the witne!lc: hm" 
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My ob1rrtton would be to thr fntroduc-

tion fntn ~vfd~nc~ R-lOO B~ not a woul~ 

tend to confu~~ the un~~r~tandtn~ of the 

evidence that ~~ tn evfd~nr~ by way of the 

If I could PY~lain that, you tak~ the 

ftrst entry, four ~ev~nty-one, by Benavides 

tndeo~~d~nt School Dt~trfrt Rnd the water 

dhtrf ct 

MR. "fiTCHELL: IR t~t~ argument of lsw 

tlr i~ he summ~tri:P!fng hit:: object~on or whet. 

!f it iR en argument of la~ I would t~ke to 

have thP ri~ht to rPsoond. 

THE MASTER: You hav~ the rt~ to re~"nnd 

hut I think this Is an obiection end in 

RUDoort of thRt h~ {R tryin~ to ex~lain ft. 

MR. MITCHELL: All rf_~l,t, 

MR. ODM1! The totah of R-91, 92 and 9~, 

were taken in the ffr~t column and I haP no 

reason to beltev~ that the adding machine 

taoe8 don't rome uo with tho~e totalR. 

WhPn we get over tn the other columns, 
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oatd 0. P. CArr-!IJo, it confu~Ps thE' bank 

Imolrment and HardwAre, thE' information ts 

that monE>v w~· dPno~fte~ fn one account. 

SomP of thE' nthE>r~ werP fn both. 

To look l'lt thi~ "'~a totAl, as I fir~t 

bank account. Going back and rPadin~ the 

recor~. the rE>ferencP was madE> as to how 

much was from R-89, and the nuPstfon wa~ on 

that amount 8nd thP rPcord will ~npak for 

account. 

I thi.nk to introducP this tnt o evi.dencP 

ts ~ofn~ to confu~P thP rE>cnrd a~ to thP 

That would be my ob1E>ctfon and that would 

far and thP PVidPnCP can ~tand by {tsplf. 

This ~muld jumble tht> rPcord. 

THE MASTER: Mr. MitchE-ll, do you want 

to ll"nly? 

MR. ~ITCHELL: I am incrPdulous. R-91, 

92 ~nd 91 arP their E~hibits. The checks 

of those amounts, and tho~P, if they arp 
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c...,nfusin~. they h~tve donP the cnnfusing. 

TllF MASTER: A!! I undPrRtand tt, you 

Rent!! ont> bank account' 

MR. MITCHELL: No. 

THE MASTER: Or you ~tre Rug~~P.ti.ng that 

ft re"Prt>Rents --

MR. MITCHELL: Th.- Rtatus of the rPcord 

"" of thi~ "Pn~nt 1R what it would rt>nrPRent. 

TRE MASTER: WP11, t~t> activity of 

Benavfdt>s Imnlement and Hardware, irrPs"Pectivt> 

of th~ bank a~count~. 

MR. MITCijELL: Ri~ht. 

THE MASTER: And irr~Rnective of nrtvat~ 

!'llt1~s. 

MR. MITCHELL: Right, and WP ar.- going 

to show further, when wP get to R-101, 2 and 

1 that ht> didn't rt>nort this. 

I offer them furtht>r, Judge Meyers, to 

~how that his testimony waR that he and 

0. P. rinned off thP county to 'PAY fnr the 

doz~rs and rinned off ~nough to give 0, P. 

Carrtl1o somt> money as wt>ll. Th~se ar~ 

E~hlbfts that are In Anrtl of 1971, for 

examnle, ~tnd he took in t~n thousand dollars 
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and he oRtd 0. P. onP t~ou~and. 5-71, he 

took in siY thousRnif -- tn nthPr words, it 

olacPs f.t fn 11 summ11ry of Rll of t~P data 

the t camP in. 

THE >.fASTER: I ,.,fll ovPrrulP the objpc-

tion and admit R-100. 

EXAMINATION CONTINU~ 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Be~fnntn~ with 4-71, is therp more income into 

Benavides ImolemPnt 8nd HRrdwarP from t~P w11ter 

di~trict and thP sc~ool dtstrictaccount thRn oatd 

to you? 

A Yes, but you confused mP. 

Q Is therE' more thllt came from Duval County Rnd the 

11111ter district' 

A Yes. 

Q All rir:ht. LPt mP Rsk you this. Is therE' any-

whPrP the fncomP aooroxf.matPs the out~o to you? 

A All I recf'f.'-"' 11>as that onP thou:oJand and eil!'ht 

itollars. ThPrf> f.R more monPy that f.s not shown 

in the Exhthtts that werP fur~ished ~Pre to me. 
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Q And you recall Mr. Coultn~'s t~~timony that you 

2 and Ramiro and h~ turn~d ov~r thfs monP.y and ~avP 

3 it to you? 

4 A Yf'S, 

s Q Do you recall hiR t~sttmony that he didn't havf' 

6 any f'nutnmf'nt for rental? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q And he had no incomP from ~nu{~mP.nt? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q And much lE"ss any doi!ers? 

11 A Yes, si.r. 

12 Q LPt mP show you 102, which If! a co,y of thf' incomf> 

13 ta~ return furnished me by counsPl. 

14 MR. MITCHELL: Wpll, we offer 102. 

IS THE MASTER: What year is that? 

16 MR. MITCHELL: Thi~ is 73. I am har<'lout 

17 and don't havp an f'~tra cony for thf' Mastf'r 

18 to look at. but I would Rke to have the Court 

19 

20 THE ~ASTER: 102 is the 71 return. 

21 MR. MITCHELL: Yes, and 103 would be 

22 the 74 rf'turn. 

~ Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) LPt mE' hand you, Jud~e Carrttto 

24 

25 

Mr. CoulinJ's return for 197~. 

MR. ODAM: I bf'lif'vE" Mr. Mitchell Raid 
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HR. HITCJ.tELL: I ~tm " 1ftt1P h~trd DUt 

tn unfft"rl'ltltnd t.,,.t. I ""' nnt tryfn2 to 

"itn~a~. I ~tm • bt"ttPr 1""YP!' t.,an that. 

Cnuns~t t11k~~ thP r~rn!l frnm Hr. Cnu1fnP~ 

ar·d run!ll thP ...ttne"" nff """ then hand!! thPm 

THE MASTER: 

b~· Hr. Cnultnl! ttur<~:ullnt: tn" !tuhnof'nll. 

MR. ODAH: Th~tt i" cnrrP~t . 

fHE MASTER: Hf' 1 !II "= i.mo 1 y nh i t"Ct f.n2 tn 
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MR, ODAM: YP~, Ynur Honor. 

MR. MITCHELL: WP11, tf-tat f.s trur, 

rrttrn dor~ RoPak for ~t~elf. 

WhPrr iR Mr. Coulin2 and I will out him 

""· I "'llnte~ to 'loint f)Ut one itf'm on trut t 

71 rE-turn and thPn I ~nn't ask him any morr 

ask him in dptail about thPm. 

THE MASTER: You may oo~nt out to the 

Court or MaRtPr anythtnr vou wfqh to with 

rPsnect to thfs EYhibit which has been offPred 

and baR 102 been offPrPd &R well? 

MR, MITCHELL: 101, tO? and 101 11re 

offerPd &R thP 7,, 71 and 74 rE-turns. 

102 and 101 are admfttPd. 

MR. MITCHELL: I sunno~P Mr. Coul in~ ·. s 

hrrf', because I don't rPrall him bein~ 

excused by thE> Court. 

becausP I am ~otn~ to call him and ask him 

nuPsti ons. 

Q (By Mr. MitchPll:) Jud~P Carrillo, I will ask you 

<"ne nurstion. 

THE MASTER: You can 1ust say wf.ll yot1 
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t,qkE' noti_cP !lf. 

2 Q Jud~E' Carrillo, will you look Rt thP schPdule C 

3 of thP 1971 rPturn, will you takP nnticP of that? 

4 A YP!'I, ~ir. 

5 Q RPntAl incomP, how much w8s thAt? 

6 A Thirty-two thousand stx hundrPd thirty doll11rs 

7 fi_ ftef:'n cents. 

8 Q All dght. 

9 MR. MITCHELL: A~ of C'our~e. I know 

10 thf:' Court rPcalls thP tPst~mony of our 

11 PYoert anrl thP distinction bE'twPen that and 

12 t"e 1065 rPturn. I would like to havP Mr. 

13 Coutine back, howPvPr, I rlon't see him back 

14 this morning. 

15 THE MASTER: Wpll, Mr. Od~tm, obviously 

16 Mr. Couling has to bP hPrP. 

17 MR. ODAM: HP is ~PrP, Your Honor. DoPs 

18 Nr. MitchPll want to nut ~i.m on thP stand now? 

19 THE ~STER: No, I don't know what Mr. 

20 MitchE'll w~tntP, but I want to finish with 

21 Jurlge C~trrillo bE'forP WP takE' ~tnothE'r witness, 

22 howevPr. 

23 MR. MITCHELL: Th11nk you, JudgP MeyE-r~. 

24 Q (By :·1r. MitC'he1l:) Jud~E' Carrillo, your tPstim•my 

25 in ronnE'ction ~tth R-100 w11s that you had oaid thP 
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~um~ ann~arine: in 1971, that is R-100, and you 

o&id thou• amounts of mnney to Mr. CoulinJ!; for 

rPnt on th~ bu11do~ers? 

Q And I belt~v~ I Rave you E-160? 

A y~~. 

Q And that Schedul~ C thirty-two thousand nlu~ 

rental sho1>•~ rental income Mr. Couline: reoortt>d 

on rE'ntal? 

Q And you recall his testimony tht hP had no other 

Pf?U t omen t ·• 

A Yes. 

Q And on tho~e returns, thPy arE' R-100, 101, 102 and 

101, .otnd •1thf'r nieces of enuiomPnt are shown as 

well? 

A Yes. 

Q We will tt•P.Itflln him at a 1.otter timf' on that. 

A All rf.~ht. 

Q Let mt> as·t you thi~, ole.otse. 

Do y•lU know of your own knowlede:e what bank 

account M;. Coulinp was using, Jude:e Carrillo, for 

the dt>oos ts of your money or any of this money 

from Duval County? 

A No, str, I do not. 
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Q On volr dfr~. Mr. OrlAm ~~ked vou nn ~evPral 

2 
or~~~inn~ ff you werP attrmntln~ to rharActeri~P 

3 

4 
A I "''11~ rot. 

5 Q Wtll you olea~F take R-100 and out it in front 

6 nf you . 

. 7 A All ri.!!ht. 

8 MR. MITCqELL: Well, I want the Court 

9 tn U~P thllt, 

10 THE MASTER: Mr. Mf.t~hP11, you addre!'lsed 

11 
11 nUP!'ltlnn tn Judge Carrtlln nn rent on two 

12 bullc:'lo?.t'rs. That, of rour~e, on this R-10' 

13 
~a~ rent nafd nut, not rent received. 

14 MR. MITCHELL: No, th~t h a S~hedulP C 

15 nf fncomP rnmtng in. 

16 TH~ MASTER: No, si. r, it Pt~ys dPducti nn!!. 

17 The rent on bulldo~er~ i~ a deduction, as I 

18 read thP return. 

19 MR. MITCHELL: Ynu Prt' rf~ht, that would 

20 be oayment~ made to Plain!'l Machinery. I 

21 sunoo~e if he natd them or made them 

THE MASTER: Well, according to his 

23 rPturn, it is naymPnts not rPreived by Mr. 

24 Couling, but natd out by ~r. Coulfng, 

25 MR. MITCHF.LL: And used as a deduction? 
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T!ffi MASTER: 

Q (By Mr. Mftch~ll:) In ti~ht of t~~ Court's obs~r-

vatfon, th~t th{rty-two thou~8nd ~fy hundr~d 

thirty dol1~r fipur~ com~~ und~r th~ d~ductfnn 

eatf'~ory, ~~ th~t rorrPct, Jud~P C~rrflto? 

A Yf's. 

------------··--------------
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We don't know whether or not he included that in 

one hundred and twenty-n:l.ne thousand six hundred 

figure, the amount of money you paid him for rent 

in 1973, do we? 

No. 

Will you look at R-100, and I am going to get at 

this in a minute and look for a '73 income from 

Duval County, B.I.S.D. and water district, how 

much income does he have, total income? 

For 1971? 

No. No, you're not listening, '73, Judge Carrillo. 

'73. Ni~ety-two thousand, two hundred and 

ninety-three dollars and forty-nine cents. 

And that figure comes off of R-100, does it not, 

Judge Carrillo? 

Yes, sir. 

As a total income from those three entities? 

Yes, sir. 

On his Schedule C in R-102, he shows a one hundred 

and twenty-nine thousand six o nine eighty-nine, 

am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And if you add the amount of money you paid him, 

which was sixteen thousand nine, what does that 

come to? That doesn't quite make the one twenty-nile 
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six o nine, am I correct? 

I need the adding machine again. 

At any rate, the Court can make that calculation. 

I would Esk you, if you would, look at '72 profit 

and loss. 

Now, I am looking at 101. What is the figure 

for gross sales from those three entities for 19721 

A hundred and twenty-eight thousand four hundred 

and sixty dollars and ten cents. 

MR. MITCHELL: Did I confuse the Court? 

On 1 72, Judge, the gross figure. 

And if his tax --

THE MASTER: His gross figure was not 

what that reflects. 

MR. MITCHELL: That's right. Precisely. 

THE MASTER: Oh, I see. 

If you compare the gross figure one hundred that 

is made from R-91, 92 and 93 and that reported 

to Uncle Sam, he is shy, how much? 

He is shy approximately twenty thousand dollars. 

Assuming he didn't do a dime's worth of income 

from any other entity other than these three 

districts? 

That's right. 

MR. ODAM: I am sorry. Counsel, what 
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were you making a comparison of? You lost me. 

THE MASTER: He was comparing, and l got 

lost, also, the gross figure for the profit 

and loss from business or profession 

schedule in the 1972 return to the grand tota1 

figure from Duval County, Benavides lndependert 

School District and water district shown on 

Exhibit No. R-100. 

MR. ODAM: That was comparing the one 

hundred twenty-eight thousand on R-100 with 

what? 

MR. MITCHELL: Schedule C, gross income. 

THE MASTER: With a hundred and nine on 

Schedule C . 

MR. ODAM: All right, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am going to do the same 

thir g, if it please the Court, on 1974. 

(By Mr. Z..itchell) Judge, I am going to take from 

R-100, the income from 1974, which is on the seconc 

page, which is how much gross income from those 

three entities, Judge Carrillo? 

1974 is forty-seven thousand three hundred and 

twenty-seven dollars. 

Now, on ~is Schedule C for 1974, he reports forty­

nine thousand six hundred and sixty-six, am I 
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correct? 

Yes, sir. 

Showing that it's two thousand -- roughly seventee 

hundred dollars worth of business outside of 

Duval County, Benavides Independent School Distric 

and the water district for '74, am I correct? 

Yes. 

Of course, we don't know what the figure would be 

for '71 because we don't have his tax return, but 

according to R-100, which is a derivation or a 

chart made from 91, 92 and 93, he did ninety-five 

thousand seven hundred and forty-five dollars and 

thirty cents worth of business with those three 

entities? 

Yes, sir, acco~ding to R-100. 

But we do know from his testimony that he had 

roughly a seventy thousand dollar deficiency in 

his tax bill? 

Yes. 

Now, as Judge Meyers pointed out on that 1 73 retur 

the figure there of the rent on the dozer appears 

to have been on this Schedule C a deduction 

against the gross income realized from the 

operation, profit and loss of a business, does it 

not? 
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A Yes, sir 

Q 

A 

So, appa1·ently with the federal government, at 

any rate, he took a deduction of roughly thirty­

two thouf:and dollars rent that he paid on the two 

dozers? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have one second, 

Judge Meyers, to -- I believe I am about 

finished. 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: And may I talk with my 

client? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: And this reason being, 

Your Honor, I am very careful and want to mak 

sure everything --

THE MASTER: Incidentally, are these 

income tax returns that you put before me the 

exhibits in evidence or are they copies? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, these are the exhibit 

in evidence. They do not have any --

THE MASTER: So, I will be sure and 

give them back to the reporter. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I, at the request --

Your Honor, may I have those duplicated, 101, 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE .. GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORpUS CHRIST! TEXAS 78~01 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 Q 

9 

10 

II A 

12 Q 

13 A 

14 Q 

15 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 

19 

20 A 

21 

22 Q 

23 

24 

25 A 

3713 

102 and 103 in view of the fact we don't have 

copies? 

THE MASTER: Get the reporter to do so. 

(Whereupon, an off-the-record 

discussion was had.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Judge Carrillo, you recall 

Mr. Couling's contract with Benavides Implement 

and Hardware was E-160? 

Yes, sir. 

And I gave you that, I believe, over the weekend? 

Yes, sir. 

In connection with the work that you have done at 

the Court's request? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, you recall that the contract was -- well, let's 

look at it. Let's don't speculate. What is the 

purchase price? 

The purchase price was thirty-nine thousand one 

hundred and eighty-six dollars. 

All righ~. Now, E -- I am sorry, strike that. 

That is E-160 was superceded by R-50, which 

is your contract? 

Yes, sir. 
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And yon took over essentially the balance and y>u 

agreed to pay how much of those bulldozers? 

There ~¥as owing -- this is counting interest, the 

contract itself was thirty-five thousand dollars; 

thirty-nine is interest and insurance and 

everything. When I took it over, there was a 

balance of twenty-two thousand dollars. 

All right. And he deducted thirty-two thousand 

in his '73 return as being payments, rental 

payments made on account of those dozers, did he 

not? 

Yes, sir. 

I think the Exhibits 102, Schedule C, reflects 

that? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, if I might clarify 

that point, Page 2, he is referring to, says 

rent paid to Plains Machinery Company and 

B. D. Holt, Corpus Christi, Texas. So, I 

believe that the thirty-two thousand six 

hundred and thirty is not just Plains, but 

he states on the exhibit B. D. Holt, also. 

MR. MITCHELL: I stand corrected as 

counsel pointed out. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, the combination contract, 
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E-160, in line with Mr. Odam's observation, that 

is the two root plows, and E-160 would come to how 

much, Judge Carrillo? You have told me that 

thirty-five thousand t-7aS the contract for two 

dozers. 

Yes, sir, and the other one was approximately 

eleven thousand. 

Or a total of forty-six thousand, roughly, am I 

correct? 

Yes, sir. 

He deducted thirty-two thousand of that being rent 

paid, is that correct? 

Yes, sir. 

Of course, you agreed to pay how much when you tool 

them over in 1974? 

It would have been one-half of that, which was 

seven fifty plus five. 

And, of course -- strike that. 

MR. MITCHELL~ May I approach my witness, 

Your Honor, to be sure 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, so the record 

reflects, I am not on these as the Court well 

knows, and I am representing not only a 

lawyer, but a judge, and I am very careful 
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tJ be sure that any observations that the 

Court -- the judge or my client has, that I 

certainly want the record to reflect and I 

am not -- when I approach him this way, I 

want to be sure he doesn't fuss at me when 

he is turned loose. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I believe the record reflects 

this accurately, but you don't have any knowledge, 

or do you have any knowledge, Judge Carrillo, of 

Couling's business as reflected in 91, 2 or 3 

with the County of Duval or the Benavides 

Independent School District or the Duval County 

Conservation and Reclamation? 

No, sir. 

Is it a fair statement to say that the first 

knowledge you had was upon the furnishing of the 

exhibits by the Examiner? 

Yes, sir. 

That we have? 

Yes, sir, it was. 

You did not, of course, report on a 1065 form 

any character of partnership or relationship with 

Benavides Implement and Hardware, did you? 

No, sir, because there was none. 

And you reported that Mr. Couling did not --
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A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

-- report to Benavides Implement and Hardware as 

a partnership. 

As a matter of fact, the forms are checked 

sole proprietorship. 

That is correct. 

You do not, of course, know any character deal or 

relationship that might have existed between 

Cleofus Gonzalez, Mr. Couling or the gentleman 

that worked with Mr. Couling's store or Mr. Parr 

or anybody else with regards the securing of the 

issuance of these checks that have been introduced 

into evidence into the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware account, do you, Judge Carrillo? 

The only knowledge I have is that when Mr. Parr 

told me that he wanted to pay me the same way we 

were paying Mr. Couling, the kind of checks, and 

I wouldn't accept that form of payment so far as 

the renta1 was concerned for the bulldozer. 

All right. Let's look at, say, for example, E-71, 

the Benavides Implement and Hardware invoice in 

the hands of Cleofus Gonzalez. 

Yes, sir. 

And the statement in the hands of Cleofus Gonzalez 

which is E-72. 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

And the check to Benavides Implement and Hardware 

dated 20 September, '71, which is Exhibit E-74. 

Yes. 

And the claim jacket form which is E-73. You had 

no dealings or relationship between Cleofus 

Gonzalez with Benavides Implement and Hardware, 

Mr. Couling or anybody on that money? 

No, sir, I did not. 

Now, of course, we know that that money went into 

Benavides Implement and Hardware account as 

reflected by R-91. That one specifically went 

into R-91 as reflected by the exhibits. You had 

no control -- or did you have any control over the 

bank accounts, wherever it was, Mexico, Rio Grande 

City or Alice or San Diego over the monies that 

went into the Benavides Implement and Hardware 

account? 

No, sir. 

Do you know of any deal made, if there was any deal, 

between Cleofus and Mr. Couling on splitting that 

money? 

No, sir, I do not. 

Do you know of any kind of deal or relationship 

between Mr. Parr, Cleofus or Couling on the 
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disposition of that money, Judge Carrillo? 

Well, again, I say the knowledge that I have is 

what Mr. Parr told me after the fact, after it had 

been done, that he had paid ·the rental of this 

bulldozer to Mr. Couling through the county and 

he wanted me to follow the same procedure, which 

I would not. 

All right. Your Exhibit 100 shows you paid on 

account of that bulldozer rental of sixteen 

thousand nine hundred and twenty-six dollars. 

For that one year? 

Right. 

The following year, there is -- yes, sir. 

The following year there is some additional sum? 

Right. There was a total of twenty thousand 

seven hundred and some what dollars that I paid 

towards the payment of those bulldozers and --

Rental? 

-- .~md rental. 

And your summary shows that you had reqeived on 

account of rental payments back to you and other 

sources, twelve thousand nine hundred and thirty-

six dollars. 

Yes, sir. 

For the same period of time? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Mr. Odam asked you a question as regards of why -­

a general question,. and I want to be fair with the 

question. Why did all the Carrillo people take 

the Fifth and the non-Carrillo or Parr people woulc 

testify? Do you have an observation on that 

question, Judge Ca~rillo? 

Yes, sir. I have an observation. 

Will you tell the Court, please? 

Well, it's a fact that the Attorney General and 

the Task Force in Duval County has zeroed in on thE 

Carrillo family ani as a precaution about this 

attack upon us, we are protecting ourselves. 

Making available whatever rights the Constitution 

has given you? 

That is correct. 

I notice in Mr. Couling's 1972 return, we don't 

have the others, that he reflects the acquisition 

of certain cattle, Beefmaster cattle, '69, '70, 

'71 for a depreciation schedule. 

Yes, 9ir. 

Were some of those cattle that you had previously 

testified to that you had sold him? 

I sold him some cattle and two bulls. I am almost 

sure. He said one, and the more I think about it, 
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I know it's two bulls, not one. 

l.Yell, there is a schedule of depreciation set up 

Etnd 1 will just inform you whether you know or not 

set up in that earliest return that we have, of 

acquisitions made prior to the date of that --

Yes. 

And I belieYe your testimony was that he had on 

occasions pt·rchased animals from you? 

Yes, sir, he has. 

And can you tell us generally, Judge Carrillo, 

when and the amounts that we are talking about? 

I don't remember the date or the amounts. I know 

that we were selling at a show and I would have to 

be placing some of my best animals to being sold 

at the show, and I am very proud of my herd of 

cattle. 

Well, does Beefmaster, is it a registered type 

breed? 

It's a registered breed. Well, it's a -- they 

call it a certified breed. Registered goes only 

to Herefords, Brahmas, Brangus and established 

breeding like that. Wherever there is a cross 

that has been developed such as Santa Gertrudis 

or Beefmasters or Semintols or things like that 

that is kind of exotic breeding, those are 
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certified. But in so many words, it amounts to 

the same thing. 

Judge Carrillo, there is a question in my mind on 

the counter, and one of those checks is noted a 

sale of a counter; do you recall? 

Yes, sir. 

If you recall Mr. Kirkland's testimony was he did 

not pick up personal property separately for 

depreciation. 

Now, I want to ask you, first of all, when, 

if you can recall, the counter was acquired and 

under what circumstances, please? 

The counter was acquired in 1962 when I acquired 

the Vallejo Sales Building to the bankruptcy 

sale, to the receiver. And it was part of the 

inventory of the materials or whatever you want to 

call them that was inside the buildings. I bought 

the whole thing. They closed the doors and I 

bought whatever was in there that came in. There 

were safes, display counters, different --

different kinds of inventory that we located in 

there. 

All right. Now, Judge Carrillo, that was purchased 

from the trustee and bankruptcy estate in about 

1962? 
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As I can best recall, I purchased the Vallejo 

Sales Building first and I think it was 1962, 

because I know that it was rented as late aa 

rather, as early as 1964. It was rented to 

Zertuche General Store. 

When did it cease operations as Zertuche General 

Store; do you recall? 

1970, the Zertuche General Store. 

Then, when was the sale made to Mr. Couling; do 

you recall? You want me to get that check? 

It would have been in 1971, I would imagine, 

something like that, after that. 

All right. About nine years after you acquired 

it? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you still own the Vallejo Sales Building? 

I still own it. 

I believe your exhibit reflects a total paid by 

you of sixteen nine two six on account of a 

bulldozer rental, am I correct? 

For the year 1 73? 

Yes. And the total deducted by Mr. Couling of 

seventy-three thousand, roughly, for the same 

period of time. 

Yes, sir. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRI~TL TI='V.&C. '7a.sn• 



Q 

2 

3 

4 

s A 

6 Q 

7 

8 

9 

10 A 

II Q 

12 

13 A 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

_I 

_3_724 

And the checks coming into the account from the 

Duval County, apparently made up the difference 

between what you paid them and what you paid on 

account? 

Evidently. 

Throughout the period we are talking about, Judge 

Carrillo, without waiving any objections, Judge 

Meyers, 71, 72, 73, 74, have you continued to 

perform your duties as a judge? 

Yes, sir. 

And you continued to ride the circuit as a judge, 

did you not? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge Meyers, I have no 

further questions of the witness. I pass 

the witness. 
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Judge Carrillo, I believe last Friday Mr. Mitchell 

introduced into evidence an example of some of the 

books that pertained to Duval County welfare 

claim forms that you had kept in your posses8ion, 

is that correct? 

Yes, ma'am. 

And I believe that exhibit number was R-99. 

Well, 1 would like to see it, please. I am sure 

you're correct, but I have had so many number• 

going through my mind, that --

R-99. 

All right. May I have just a minute to clear my 

glasses? 

All right, ma'am. 

Okay. This R-99 was just an example of some 

forty-four other, or a total of forty-four units 

which you had here in the courtroom on Friday, is 

that correct? 

Yes, ma'am. 

And you had gone through and looked at those units, 

I believe; isn't it true, that almost all those 

----*---------------------------------------------------~-
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books were for the year 1964, with a couple of 

exceptions of the years 1963 and 1965, but there 

were no books that showed any dates past 1965? 

I thought there was some in there for '66, also, 

and I could be wrong, but I can check. 

In any event, you saw none of the books in there 

past 1966? 

I can't remember. I would have to go back into 

the box. 

Did you see any books in there past 1968? 

Again, I would have to go and check. I can't 

answer one l.:ray or the other. 

Would you take my word that I checked them and 

there were no books past 1965, and would you agree 

with me on that? 

I would love to, but taking other people's word 

lately has got me into a lot of trouble and I had 

just as soon go into and check it. With all due 

respect. 

THE MASTER: Judge Carrillo, is that 

box here? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, it's in the trunl 

of :ny car. 

THE MASTER: So, you can do it at a 

recl3ss? 
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THE WITNESS: Yea, I will be happy to 

do so, Judge. It's a lot better than ae 

carrying it over here, Judge. If you will 

just indulge me for a moment. 

THE MASTER: Sure 1 y. 

THE WITNESS: All right, ma'am. 

(By Ms. Levatino) Okay. Thank you, Judge. 

You did testify on Friday, however, though, 

that your signature did appear in R-99 and other 

examples or other unita of which that is an 

example in the space that shows the welfare 

authorizing person, I believe, Elvira DeLeon's 

name is printed on there and usually your naae 

would be written above that as authorizing the 

welfare recipients to receive whatever was 

indicated on that slip, is that correct? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Okay. And I believe you testified that at some 

time some other person would actually be writing 

them out for you or perhaps even sign your name, 

every once in a while, such as Rudy Couling, 

George Zertuche? 

Minerva Casas. 

Those are the three people? 

To my knowledge. 
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Q Pardon? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

To my knowledge. 

·To your knowledge, right. But you did not 

identify or didn't see in your review of those 

forty-four units any other person writing on those 

books other than those three people and yourself, 

in the welfare recipients --

I will be perfectly honest with you, I didn't 

check all of them. 

Well, when you are counting these books during the 

break, would you also check to see whether or not 

there are any other signatures? 

Now, that is going to be quite a chore and .it's 

going to take more than a break. There is quite 

a few of them and a lot of page. I will be happy 

to do it, but I can't do it in 

THE MASTER: I don't believe that could 

be done in twenty minutes. If you're aaking 

him to go through each of these, what, 

forty-four books, and see if those are the 

only three who signed his name. That 11 what 

you were asking. 

MS. LEVATINO: Yea, uh-huh. 

THE MASTER: I don't see how he can do 

that in twenty minutes. 
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MS. LEVATINO: Would you generally look 

over those books again, just generally? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I will be happy to, 

but I just don't want to come back and tell 

you I checked each one and then have you 

come back and want one that I did not see. 

THE MASTER: Well, then, I will look at 

three or four and they are handled differentl,, 

I don't remember anybody other than Couling, 

Zertuche and who ia the lady? 

MS. LEVATINO: Minerva Casas. That was 

my observation. 

THE MASTER: But, you know, I just 

looked at what Mr. Mitchell showed me. 

MS. LEVATINO: Well, and also, Your 

Honor, since these units are not all in 

evidence, only one is, I would like the 

general statement from him with regard to 

those. 

THE MASTER: Yes, I think he has done 

that. Generally, you're telling us, are you 

not, that either you signed your own name or 

initial or if you did not do it, then, either 

Rudolfo Couling, George Zertuche and I think 

it 1 a Junior. 
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THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Or Mrs. Casas. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

THE MASTER: There may, you say, be 

isolated instances of somebody else? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

THE MASTER: But they would only be 

isolated? 

3730 

THE WITNESS: I will state the reason 

for that, Your Honor, and that is until --

until that came out, I did not know that 

Mrs. Minerva Casas was handling any of it 

until I noticed it, but she was there in the 

office and there were other people that were 

also working in the office, and some of these 

folks might have been out and they might have 

handled it as regular procedure. 

THE MASTER: I will tall you, it's 

possible that Cleofus Gonzalez may have eigne 

one or two for you. 

THE WITNESS: It's possible. 

MR. MITCHELL: I know that is a matter 

of fact, Your Honor, where his signature --
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Q (By M~. L~v~ttnn:) WPll, th~n. I wfll ask you 

2 to look at th~~P Exhib{t~. b~r8USP tn my ~xemlna-

3 tfon, I didn't ftnd any ~tgnaturP~ by ClP~fus 

4 

5 THE MASTER: W~ll. tl-)l!lt 'f.!! to b~ done 

6 nver thP ~ft~rnoon ~ession. 

1 Wtll you do that, Ju~~~ Carrillo? 

8 THE WITNESS: Y~s, str. 

9 Q Jud~e Carrillo, I am now handtn~ you the ori~inal 

10 claim form H-1-(2), which js r~nroduc~d in E-55 

11 at oage 35~ to 155. 

12 A Y~s, ma'am. 

~ Q Last Friday, whit~ slins werP look~d at, and 

14 

15 A Yf's, m& 1 t•m. 

~ Q And that tndtc~tf'~ to you not every one of the 

17 welf&r~ clafm~ for that month wPr~ sunoorted by 

18· 

19 A Yes, m& 'am. 

~ Q Would you takP nut those chtts and ~ee if you 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

can, by ~ivin~ the names on the ch~ts and the 

doll&r amount authorized, match them uo with thP 

Duval County wPlfar~ forms, the orinted forms 

MS. LEVATINO: Again, I may ask the 
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Court's indul~ence, I am ~oin~ to ask him to 

do this on all four of these oarticular claim 

1ackets, 

THE MASTER: Ye!'l, the ones where Mr. 

Mitchell indicated they didn't match uo and 

the ones Jud~e Carrillo may be done by him 

tn the 60's. 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes, that is ri~ht. 

That is what I am askin~ Jud~e Carrillo 

to do, tf I could. 

THE MASTER: Well, Jud~e Carrillo is 

~oin~ to be busy. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I know I am. 

I think I could exolain somethin~. I 

believe, i.f you will notice the names you 

ftnd in these four, and all four of them were 

iust about thP same oeoole comin~ in month 

after mnnth for orders. I think if you com-

t'ltre these t.d.th the others, you wi 11 find 

the same ones are there. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is the "uestion I 

had in mtnd, that is my auestton that I was 

,.,ondf'rf.n~ about. 

Q We do know the same names aDoear over and over 

a~atn. Mr. MitchPll ind~catf'd that. for examolf', 
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WhAt [am s~kin~ ynu to do i~ mst~h uo th~ 

nam~~ on th~ chit~ with th~RP osrttcular w~lfere 

~l•fm forms. Obviously th~y hav~ b~.-n ~ttaoled 

a~ain and a~atn and ~o forth, but to what welfarP 

formR, tf any, do th~R~ ffft.-~n chits in your 

hand aody in that oartt~ular claim jAckPt? 

I am ~Zoin2 to •sk you to do that tn ~ach of 

A That b ft n~. 

THE MASTER: I am nnt surP, you all 

but I am not Rr~ if I dn. 

MR. MITCHELL: I don't Pith~r. J~e. 

THE MASTER: You •re askin~ that he 

tak~ the chits and do what with them? 

MS. LEVATINO: Each chit haR a name 

and dollar amount on thPm. 

On thP Duv•l County w~lfar~ form, thPrP 

arP n•m~s and dollar amounts. I am askinl! 

him to takP theAP and match thPm, b~cause we 

heve testimony in the r~~ord from Mr. Cl~nfu~ 

GonzalP~ that he recpive~ these and made up 

this form of thesP chits. 
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THE MASTER: Would tt be oossible, 

because ~f the fact th~t the names reoeat 

themselve~ that the name~ mi~ht aooear on 

several of the forms? 

MS. LEVATINO: I su~~est that ts not 

oosslble because of the way thi~ worked. 

There will be fifteen names on these forms 

and two names here and they will not aooear 

~n any other forms in that cla~m 1acket. 

In a subseouent claim 1acket, there will 

be some of those same names reoeated, but 

there is a chi.t for that name reoresented on 

that form. 

THE MASTER: Well, we 6re almost to 

break tfme ~n~ let's take a sli~htly lon~er 

break so Jud~e Carrillo can do that. 

Do y~u want him to do the four seoarate 

claim jackets? 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes. 

THE MASTER: Durin~ the break, Jud~e 

Carrillo, I will ask you to comply wi.th ht-r 

re(lues t. 

THE WITNESS: All ri~ht. I will start 

rip;ht now. 

THE MASTER: We "dll bt- in recess until 
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10:15, t~at t~ ~lmo~t thtrty minutes. 

MR. MITCHELL: W~ hav~ also a box now 

of the forty-four units. 

THE MASTER: Thr~ ts no way Jud~e 

Carrfllo can ~o through each of those forty• 

four book~ and see who stgned hts name, other 

has time to do that, th~t ts ftne, but I 

don't ~PP how he does. 

THE WITNESS: If they st~ned my name to 

tt, -!nd unless they ini.tialed, I mi~ht not be 

able to tr>ll you who di.d that. 

THE MASTER : That t~ correct. 

We will break now untfl 10:20. 

(A r~ce~s wa~ tak~n from 9:50 until 

10:20.) 

THE MASTER: You may "roceed. 

Q (By Ms. Levatino:) Jud~e Carrillo, woul~ you "ick 

u" the ori~tnal claim form H-l-(2) and it is 

claim number A-201S. It is found on ~a~e 353 of 

Examiner's Exhibft 55. 

A I have H. 

amounts on the chits in that Exhibit to the Duval 
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County w~lfarP nrinted forms that ere contafned 
, 
'~,- in th~tt E~hlhit. 
~\) 

A '/f'R, ml'l'am. 

Q Wf'r~ you &ble to m~ttch the chits with the Duval 

County formR? 

0 Olo1y. So the recorrl is cle&r, could you tell me 

~hat d,.te of the Duval County welf~tre forms you 

rltd t~tkP to rnmo~trP the chtts with? 

It ts on t~e Duval County welfar~ form. 

A 7-15-70. 

Q OkAy. And for th~ ~urna. of the record, that is 

r~oroduced on Ol'l~e 355? 

A YP'I'l, 

THE MASTER: Of E-55? 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes. 

Q All r~~ht. Did you find for the welfare deoart-

mf'nt form dated 7-15-70 a ser:f.es of et~ht chits 

with those corres~ondin~ names, the names corres-

nondin~ to those on the welf~trf' county form? 

A RPneat thst. 

Q Dtd you ffnd ch4ts within that claim jacket with 

nAm~s and smounts aooearin~ on 7-15-70? 

A I found two t~,.t were not listed on thf're, 

rf'st were listf'd on thPre. 
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di~ ynu nnt ffnd rhft~ for? 

Q So the rPrord f~ rle~r. nn the wplfare dPuartmPnt 

fnrm for 7-15-70, nPithPr thP n3mP Mrs. Garrt~ 

nor Mr. Carrfllo aooPar on th~t o~rtfcular form, 

~o tt t~ your te~timony thPrP ~Pre chitR to suonort i 

e~ch of tho~P namP8 and amounts on the welfarP 

form for t~P 15th of July, 1970? 

A No, thPre werp morP names th~n t~P ehfts I h•d. 

Q Dfd you fin~ a chtt to Elvfra Rodrfnuez for twPnty 

doll~rs? 

A YP!'.. ma'am. 

Q Okay. Did you ffnd a ehit fnr ~r~. Htno1os• for 

twenty dollars, and a5 you ~o throu~h there, would 

you out thnqp to thP s{dp? 

A Y P q , ma ' am. I found 1.t. 

Q D~d you find a chit for, I bPlievP --

A ~ould I ~o baek. There are two MrR. Hino1oRas. 

Q Well, just use nne of them, th~t 1.8 all we are 

talkin~ about rf~ht now. 

A All rtR'ht. 

Q Nnw, did you ffnd ~ chit for Gateura, is that 

correct? 

THE "iAS TER: I would ~ay Guterrez. 
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Ar~ you talkin~ about th~ third name on 

E-55? 

MS, LEVATINO: Y~s. 

THE MASTER: It is hard to make out, 

but I would su~g~st Mrs. Guterrez. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, there is a Mrs. 

GuterreP. hf're. 

Q Did you find a chit for Ross Rndrinuez? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q And Jose Sando1ar? 

A I ~e one for Jof.' Sandojar. 

Q All ri~ht. For Mike Ruiz? 

A Y~s, ma'am. 

Q TPte Cha,a? 

A Yt-s, ma'am. 

Q And Mr. Canales? 

A No, ma'am. 

Q That may be Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: And it could be -- I don't 

I r.-tract that. I don't know what 

name that f.s. 

Q A chit for A name, Mr. -- that b~~ins with the 

lett~r C, that could be Carrillo or Canales. 

U A If I could see it, it is meyb~ Mr. Canales. 

~ Q Well, ft could bP Carrillo? 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840t 



"P19 
--~------------------------------------

A No, ml't 1 1'tm. 

2 THE l.fAS TER: No. I c1on' t bel i_ PVe 'It 

3 could be C~~trrillo. 

4 Q Okay. On t~at form, WP11, wr ~fll leave thst 

5 last n~~tme for thr time betn~ ~~tnd ~o back to it 

6 sfter we finish that other form. 

7 

8 fnrm dated 7-8-70. Would you find thl'tt, olease. 

9 A 7-lS-70? 

10 Q No, 7-8-70. 

II THE \.fASTER : 

12 8-8-70 and aooarently changed. 

13 MS. LEVATINO: Correct. 

~ Q Now, did you find M slto for ~omrone n&med Contreas 

15 A Yes. rna' sm. 

" 0 For Rosa Ch~~toa? 

17 A YPs, ma'am. 

n Q Another onr for Hfno1osa, the second one for 

19 Hino1osa? 

~ A I thfnk we have ~~tlready used hoth of them. 

21 Q I helteve we h111ve used only one, si.r. 

~ A I only hAve four left hPre. 

23 Qp}l, here ft is, I am ~nrry. 

24 Q OkAy. Garcta, Mrlll. Gsrci.a? 

25 A No, ma'sm. 
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0 Therf' is no chi.t for hPr? 

A No, ma'am. 

Q Eva Glllr,;~t? 

A Yt-s. 

0 Mr. Slit t-n ~ ? 

Q Pancho Carrtllo? 

A Yt-s. ma'am. 

Q Do you havt- ~ny other chits rt-mainin~? 

A Yt-F., ma'am. 

A Give Mrs. Garcillt twenty dollars ~roceries. 

Q Could that Mr~. Garcta be Maria Garcia which 

aonearF. on 7-8-70~ 

A I ~on't know. I noted in f'ach one they would have 

thf' naml' f')rllct ly Ill': thl' chf. t ""of'l!lrs. Th~t is the 

reason I don't know if that is the Mme Mrs. 

Q And what does the other chit th~t is in your 

hand !'ll!ly? 

A Mr. Carrillo. 

Q All ri~ht. Thf'n with re~~trd to c la'f.m number 

A-2015, H-1-(1.) an~ on E-55, the Duval County 

wt-lfarf' f~rm~ rl~tted 7-8-70, for onP hundrl'd forty 

rlnllllrl': and for 7-15-70 for one hundred sixty 
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2 rhtts, ~ith thP PYrPption of thP last two ~hits 

3 

Garci.a on the ~hit and thP other onP beoi nR: Mr. 

s C~trrilto on thP form Rnd thPrP is some ~upstton 

6 about -- f)ardon mf', Mr. C~trri.llo nn the chi_t, and 

7 some auesti.on on thf' form, is that corrPct? 

8 A Yt>s, ma'am. 

9 
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__3_1_42 

Q All right. So, even though as Mr. Mitchell pointe~ 

out last Friday, the entire claim jackets which 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

we are referring to here contained twenty-eight 

orders, there were fifteen orders -- pardon me. 

There were fifteen orders which supported just two 

of those Duval County Welfare Department forms 

for a total of three hundred dollars, is that 

correct? 

With the exception of two or just two. 

Just those two. In other words, there are two 

Duval County claim form printed orders in this 

claim? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Which are supported by chits with your question 

about those last two little chits; understanding 

that? 

Yes. 

But none of those other Duval County welfare forma 

do contain those white chits? 

The others 

Supporting that? 

-- do not have any chits. 

Okay. 

All right. Moving to Page 360 of Examiner's 

Exhibit 55, and it would be the original claim 
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24 
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3743 

jacket A-3040. 

Just a moment. Let me put this back before we --

Yes, sir. 

-- before we get all confused. 

A-3040, also designated as H-1 (4). I want to go 

through the same process with this as we have just 

Yes, ma'am. 

I first would refer you to the Duval County WelfarE 

Department form dated 11-6-70. It contained a 

series of eight names with twenty dollars grocerie1 

each, for a total of a hundred and sixty dollars. 

Did you find a chit --

12-6-70. 

Well, it says -- it looks like it was 12-6-70 and 

then was crossed out to 11-6-70. 

Yes, ma'am. 

Okay. Did you find a chit for Pat Garza for twent) 

dollars? 

Just a moment. Yes, ma'am. 

Did you find a chit for Mrs. Hinojosa for twenty 

dollars? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Did you find a chit for Mrs. Rodriguez for twenty 

dollars? 

Again, --
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18 A 

i9 

20 Q 

21 
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23 Q 

24 

I believe there is a chit for one, it looks like 

I. 

There ia one for Elvira Rodriguez. 

Elvira. 

And for Mrs. Rodriguez by itself, there is -- we 

did not have a chit. 

THE MASTER: Judge, there should also 

be one, not only -- it could be Elvira. It's 

awfully hard to read. There is one for a 

Rodriguez, whose given name starts with an 

I. 

THE WITNESS: Irma Rodriguez, and I 

could not -- there is a chit for it, but I 

could not find it on the welfare order, 

Judge. 

(By Ms. Levatino) Pardon me. Would you take that 

chit --

But you don't know which Rodriguez it is. It 

could be either. 

All right. There is two Rodriguezea and only one 

Rodriguez on --

THE MASTER: Right. 

(By Ms. Levatino) Take that Rodriguez -- the one 

beginning with the given name I., and just aet 

that aside so that we have used one Rodrigue• for 
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_3_745 

this particular form. 

All right. 

Do you have the chit for Mr. Contreras. I don't 

know if 1 am pronouncing that right. 

Contreras. 

Contreras. 

No, ma'am. 

THE MASTER: There should be. 

MS. LEVATINO: Perhaps when we finish, 

there will be some left over, Judge. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me. Pardon me, 

Judge Meyers. May I have the witness hand me 

what is in the previous jacket so I can be 

looking at it. 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Will that be all right? 

MS. LEVATINO: That would have been 

Jacket A-2015. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am sorry to interrupt, 

but I thought I would be looking at it. l 

am sorry. 

(By Ms. Levatino) Okay. Chit for Francisco 

Carrillo. 

No, ma'am. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
COBPI!$ CHRISTl !f)( AS 7140! 



2 

3 

4 Q 

5 A 

6 

1 

8 Q 

9 

10 Q 

11 A 

12 Q 

13 A 

14 Q 

15 A 

16 Q 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 

22 

23 A 

24 Q 

2S A 

THE MASTER: There should be one for 

F. C. Carrillo. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

(By Ms. Levatino) Okay. 

Yes, F. C. Carrillo, here it is. They were over 

here in this --Mrs. Contreras' was over here a 

little while ago. 

Yes. 

THE MASTER: Fine. 

Thank you, 

I hnve got that. 

Tete Chapa? 

Yes, sir. 

Rosa Garza? 

All right. Now, in Rosa Garza I found two. 

Okay. Let's put one down. 

(Witness does as directed by counsel.) 

And Mike Ruiz 1 

Mike Ruiz. 

Okay. Now, turning to Duval County welfare form 

dated 11-7-70, appearing on Page 361 of Examiner's 

Exhibit 55, did you --

What, 7 

11-7-70 for a hundred and forty dollars. 

Yes, ma'am. 
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Q Okay. A chit for Jose Sendejar or Joe Sendejar, 

pardon me. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Joe Sendejar, yes, ma'am. 

Mr. Riviera? 

Yes, ma'am. 

J. Saenz. I believe there is a chit for Johnny 

Saenz -- no, I am sorry. 

THE MASTER! There is one for J. Saenz. 

J. Saenz. 

J. Saenz, yes, ma'am. 

Johnny SaU.nas? 

Johnny Salinas, yes, ma'am. 

Felio Diaz? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Elvira Rodriguez? 

Yes, ma'am. 

And Rosa Garza? 

Yes, ma'am. 

All right. Then, isn't it true then for claim 

jacket labeled A-3040, there are two Duval County 

claim forms, one dated 11-6-70 totalling a 

hundred and sixty dollars worth of claims, and 

one dated 11-7-70, totalling a hundred and forty 

dollars worth of claims? 

Yes, ma' u. 
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3 A 

4 Q 

5 

6 A 

7 Q 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 A 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

i7 

18 

19 

20 

2 Q 

2:: 

23 

24 

25 

Equalling three hundred dollars worth of claims, 

each one of those names being supported by a chit? 

Yes, ma'am. 

And those are all the chits in that particular 

claim jacket? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Okay, thank you. 

Now, could I make one observation? 

Certainly. 

One is 11-7-70 and one, it looked like it was 

12 and then it was changed to an 11, and the only 

thing that I notice here is that that Rosa Garza 

appearing twice and like I stated before, it was 

a pol:f.cy of only giving one order once a month 

and stating that in my belief these orders were 

given much earlier than this. These two Rosa 

Garzas appearing two days apart are certainly out 

of the policy that was had within the Welfare 

Department set up by the people that were working 

over there. 

Okay. Now, Judge Garza -- pardon me. 

Judge Carrillo, I would also like to go 

through the remaining two claim jackets with you; 

however, during the break, you did compare the 

Duval County Welfare Department forms and the chi~E? 
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A Do you want me to put this back? 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, please. 

Now, you want me to put Irma Rodriguez, which was 

Yes, sir, put it all back in the original. 

Put it all back? 

Yes, that's correct. 

(Witness does as directed by counsel.) 

Without going through each one of these chits and 

claim forms as we have been doing, in your 

comparison during the break, did you find a Duval 

County Welfare Department -- pardon me. 

I will refer your attention to Claim No. 

B-1541. 

Yes, ma'am. 

Which appears beginning on Page 380 of Examiner's 

Exhibit 55. 

Yes, ma'am. 

When you examined the chits and the Duval County 

Welfare Department claim forms in that envelope, 

did you find a department form dated 6-10-71 

containing eight names for a total of a hundred 

and sixty dollars supported by chits; do you 

recall making that comparison or finding? 

llell, I checked all four. Now, I am not -- when 

you're asking me now to refer to only two out of 
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14 Q 

JS A 

18 Q 
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four claim slips, I checked all four against four 

slips. So, they might not be within those two. 

Well, then, I think we better go through this. 

Referring you to Duval County Welfare 

Department form dated 6-10-71. 

Yes, ma'am. 

Did you find a chit for Mrs. Hinojosa for twenty 

dollars? 

Yea, ma'am. 

For Pat Garza for twenty dollars? 

Yea, ma'am. 
' '·.· .... ·: ,. . 

For Mrs. Riviera for twenty dollars? 

Yes, ma'am. 

For Mr. Contreras for twenty dollar•? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Rita Rodriguez for twenty dollare? 

17 A Ye.ll, ma'am. _ .. :·; ~~~:L· ·,·<~4:·.:~~~·}: ~- · .. 

18 Q Roia Garza for twenty dollars 1 

18 

21 

13 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yea, ma'am. 

Mike Ruiz for twenty dollars? 

Ye1, ma'am. 

And F. Diaz for twenty dollars? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Now, I would like to refer you to Duval County 

Walfara Department claim form dated 6·21-71. 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

1~ 

15 

16 

17 

18 

11 

21 

13 

IS 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

Which appears on Page 382 of Examiner's Exhibit 55 

Yes, ma'am. 

Did you find a slip for Olivera Carrillo for 

twenty dollars? 

Yes, ma'am. 

For, I believe, it's a Mrs. Gine. It looks like 

G-A-U --

THE MASTER: It looks like Guerra to me. 

What does it look like to you, the second 

name on that claim form? 

THE WITNESS: Mrs. Guerra. 

Okay. Mrs. Guerra. 

THE MASTER: And there appears to be one 

Probably there is one here that -- it looks like 

Mrs. --

MS. LEVATINO: Here it is, if you would 

like to see it. 

THE MASTER: Yes, it's the same one that 

I have on Page 382 of Examiner's Exhibit 55 

and it's difficult to be sure what the name 

is. 

MS. LEVATINO: That's correct. 

THE WITNESS: To me that looks like 

Garcia. 
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2 Q 

3 A 

Q 

s A 

6 Q 

7 A 

8 Q 

9 A 

10 Q 

11 A 

12 Q 

13 A 

Q 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 A 

Q 

24 A 

Q 

THE MASTER: It could be. 

Okay. Robert Saenz. 

Yes, ma'am. 

Okay. Mrs. Hinojosa? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Rita Garza? 

Yes, ma'am. 

And F. --
F.c.o., that is--

F.C.O.? 

That is Francisco. 

Carrillo? 

Yes. 

Okay. So, isn't it true, Judge Carrillo, that in 

Claim Jacket B-1541, there were two Duval County 

Welfare Department forms, one dated 6-10-71 for 

a hundred and sixty dollars and one dated 6-21-71 

for a hundred and forty dollars, which were 

supported by the chits which we have just 

examined? 

Yes, with exception that we also had one left over 

that was in here that was not in the list. 

And what does that one say, sir? 

"Give Mrs. Garza twenty dollars." 

Mrs. Garza. 
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23 Q 

24 A 
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All right. Would you hold that out for just 

a moment and put the rest of the material into the 

claim jacket, please? 

Yes, I can, but I haven't done that to the others. 

Yes, I knot\'. 

There were two or three in the others, yet --

Yes. Well, just hold that one out. 

THE MA~TER: But the chit that you say 

was not identified on the claim form is, 

Give Mrs. Garza --" 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

THE MASTER: As opposed to Rosa Garza? 

THE WITNESS: t~ell, Rosa Garza did ha'.re 

a chit, yes. 

(By Ms. Levatino) You should have had --

THE MASTER: Yes, I see the Rosa Garza 

chit. 

There should be another Rita Garza. Do you have a 

chit for .Rita Garza? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

In the actual chits that you're looking at? 

Yes, I think we did. 

Yes, okay. 

Yes, there is one. 

Okay. I would ask you then just to hold this one 
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chit, Mrs. Garza, out, please. 

':t:HE ~lASTER: Is the "Give ·Mrs. Garza" 

chit that you have held out the one I saw 

earlier that we weren't sure whether was 

Garza or Guerra? 

THE WITNESS: Well, one --

MS. LEVATINO: No. 

THE WITNESS: One or the other. If it 

is, then, we still have one left. One or the 

other would still be left. 

. THE MASTER: That is right. There is 

one left over in any event. 

THE WITNESS: In any event. 

/ 

/ 
,./ 

.,. .. ·· 
_.,·· 

L-~----
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Q N""'• I ~·oul t1 turn your Attt>ntton ftnal ly to tht> 

2 laRt claim 1;howi.n~, C-21 '9 on nAJ!t> 405 of E-55. 

3 A Yrs, ma'am. 

4 Q And a~k you to find a Duval County wt>lfArt> d~oart-

5 ment claim datpd August 10, 1972. 

6 A YP!!, ma'am. 

7 Q Okay. Did you find a clAim slio for Mrs. CanalPs 

8 for twenty doll~trs? 

9 A No, mA 'l'tm. 

W 0 Mrs. Sando1ar? 

11 THE MASTER: What oagt> is that? 

12 MS. LEVATINO: 406. 

13 THE WITNESS: There is one for J. 

14 

15 Q Would you l'Ut thAt IISidf'? 

~ A Yes, ml't'am. 

" Q Now, I bPlieve it ts C~trrilln or Castill --

18 n~trdon me, Castillo. 

~ Q M. Perez? 

21 A Mrs. Pert-z. 

22 Q Yes, that is correct. All ri~ht. 

23 is Ross Chaoa? 

U A Rosa Chana, yes, m~'am. 

u Q M. Garcia? 
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2 Q J, Sando.1ar? 

3 
A I belt~ve that wa~ one I nut AsfdP, 

4 
Q All ri.llht. An~ Mr!l!. H~no.1ou? 

5 A Ye!l, ma'am. 

6 
Q Turnin~ now to DuvAl County welfare denartment 

7 
claim dated 8-16-72, do you hAve a chft for Rosa 

8 
Gar~a? 

9 A 8·16? 

10 
Q Yes, sir. 

11 A I don't have an 8-16. 

12 THE MASTER: It could be 10-16 rather 

13 than 8-16. 

14 MS. LEVATINO: Pardon me, i.t is 8·1.0-72. 

15 THE MASTER: The f~t one was also 

16 8-10-7?. 

17 MRS. LEVATINO: Yes, sfr, 

18 THE MASTER: And this one i!l -- the 

19 first orte ts Au~ust 72? 

20 MS. LEVATINO: Yes. 

21 THE ~STER: And thP onP you are referr-

22 
in~ to now i!l 8-10-70? 

23 MS. LEVATINO: Yes, 

24 Q (By Ms. Levatino:) A chit for Rns11 Garza? 

25 A Yes, ma'am. 
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24 

25 

A YE'!'l, ma'am. 

A YP~, ma'&m. 

0 F. Dbs? 

0 I hE'liPve ft ts Carrillo? 

A I heHevf' the t coulrl hP C~trrU.lo. 

Q Do you havE' R chft to corrE'~nond with that, sir? 

A I havE' a chit tn Oliv@ro C~trrillo. 

Q Okay. 

A Ag&in, I ~ay ~enf'rally, they are out down e~aetly 

the way the chit ~tatE's. Thi !'I one I haw that I 

could not locate this on the wf'lfare order. 

Q Okay. 

A YPs, ma'am. 

Q And Mike Ruir? 

A 1R, M. Ruir:. 

Q Okay. So fs it not true that on thP Duval County 

welf~tre df'oartmPnt claim form~. one writtf'n 8·10-7? 

R-10-72 f0r nnE' hundred forty dollars, therE' werf' 

C'hits corrPsoondtng t'l thP namE'S and amounts 

reorf'~entfd tn tho~velfare deoartment claims. 

A ThPrf' fs two left over. 
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Q Wh~tt lirE' thP tt.•o lf'ft OVl'r? 

2 A Mrs. Canales and OJivt"ro Carrillo. 

3 Q Olivl'ro C~trrillo, is that the one WE' discussed 88 

to 8·10-72 that could be Csrrtllo or not? 

5 A I don't know. 

6 Q I~ that the one you were rE"ferrin~ to? 

7 

8 Q And Mr~. c~n81Ps, that one you testlflt"d just 

9 ~rl'vtously ~bout, you could not find one to mate~ 

10 the Mrs. Canales thRt an0 ears on the Duv~tl County 

11 ~etf~re deoartment for Au~ust, desi~nated as 

12 Au~ 10-72. 

13 A Yes, ma'am. 

U Q So that could be that Mrs. Can~tles? 

15 A YeA, milt 1 11m. 

16 Q Now, in goin~ throu~h these four claim 1 ackets. 

17 {t a~oesrs that there werE' some ~uPstions as to 

18 thP led~lbflity nn some of thesP forms and on the 

19 chits themselves, but tn each of these therl' were 

20 fifteen chits whtch suooorted two se~ate ordE'rs, 

21 one for onE' hundrt'd sixty dollars and one for 

22 onE' hundrf'd forty doll8rs, which were submftted 

to the commissioners court for ~rocerles, i~ thst 

24 correct? 

25 A Yf>tt~, mA'am. 
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Q Ok8y, And it t~ your tPstimony th8t these chits, 

2 
~~tlP wrtttPn by vou, were not written 8t the 

3 
timP tndicBted on the Duval County welfare form 

4 

5 A Th8t is my contention. 

6 
Q An<' thst is bec8U!H' you were not i.nvolved tn ~iv-

7 {nJ!: out welfare forms at that ti.me, 11<: shown by 

8 theRe forms? 

9 A Yes, that is aR I recall. 

10 Q It is your testimony -- is It truP, Jud~e 

11 CBrrillo. that thPse white slins were written 

12 by you and were written to su~nort t~ese fraudulent 

13 r.lalms which were submitted to the commissioners 

14 ~ourt so you could get your return on groceries~ 

15 A ThRt ~s a lte. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

MS. LEVATINO: Thst ts all I have. 

MR. ODAM: We would like to move to 

THE MASTER: You may do so. 

MR. MITCHELL: May we keen these for 

a nossible re-direct? 

THE MASTER: Yes, of course, try to 

keen them to~ether. 

MR. MITCHELL: I wl. 11, Jud ~t' MeyE>rl'l. 

THE ~~fASTER: I found i. t was best to 
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MR. MITCHELL: 

~11 fnur nf t~~Ae tn th~ nrf~tnal fnrm, 

b~r~u~~ ~~~mfn~t1on of thesP variou~ ~hits 

~nd document~ tn it'~ raw, so to sneak, 

would a~re• ~d th. th~t thesP renr,ductl,ns 

woul~ nnt rPvPal Pvf'rythin~ ~s well as th~ 

ort~inal. 

THE ?-fASTER: ThE-re il': no ou~stfnn they 

I don't know th~ nroblrm nf takin~ up 

the nrll!tna 1s. what i.~~: the nroblem? 

MS. LEVATINO: Whf'n I checkE-d out the 

ort~fnals frnm thE' Spnate, I ~sAured them I 

would h~ve thP ,rt~tn~t~ back to them by 

I have nn nb 1 Pet ion tn h~vi nl! the ortp.;tnal~ 

~ubmltted to the Commission, but I do think 

~nme furthPr ~rrani!PmPnt~ would h~ve to bP 

m~d~ wfth thP SE'nl!ttf' as to these oertteular 

f,ur oril!fnal~. Fhnuld they not be available 

tn th~ Sen~tP on Janu~ry 5th. 

MR. MITCHELL: I h~vP rpference to thP 
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fart that thP y~llow chit~ have holP~ in th~m. 

We challPnp.p th~ authPntfrfty ~f them. 

THE MASTER: You mPan th~ obvious 

staple marks? 

MR. MITClffiLL: Yes, and there fs no 

way to r~orodt!C~ thoSE' hlllP~. I thi. nk anyone 

i.n thP lam bu~i.ness -- I can count, for 

e·lutmolP, on orP of thE>m, one, t"•o, three, 

four, five, ~~x SE'ts, Jud~e MPyers, and I 

di.dn't intend to commandeer thPm from the 

St>natt>, but --

THE ~STER: Wrll, lt>t me ask you this. 

Do you a~rt>e any time the Senate wants 

them back they could bP withdrawn? 

MR, MITCHELL: Absolutely. 

THE ~STER: Wfth th11t undPr~tan~fn~, f_s 

MS. LEVATINO: No, I dn't SPf' any. 

THE MASTER: If it c~mes to a ~upstlon 

ficatfons Commissfon has thPm, cPrtafnlv, 

and probably they will rE>~roduce at that 

MR. MITCHELL: YPs, th~t is truP. 
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THF. MASTER: Altl,nncoh 

MR, MITCHELL: A., thP Court knnw!ll, Wf' 

wrt~drawn from th• SPn8tP nf th• State of 

TPYa~ an~ thPV havP ~ nrfnT ~1aim tn thes• 

MR. MITCHELL: ThAnk you, Jud,_. Mf'yerA. 

MR. ODAM: Do you ;avP your cooy of the 

cnuld look At? 

MR. MITCHv.LL: I ~ure can, John, do 

ynu meAn the FirAt AmendPd? 

MR. MITCHELL: I can hand hfm my cooy. 

Court Ai~n a AubooPna for MrR. Gibson, thP 

cu9tndtan of the Internal RPvPnun SPrvice 

recordA., 

THE MASTER: Yes. 
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Off thf' rPcord. 

MR. ODAM: Your H~nor -- on th~ rf'cord. 

THE MASTER: Y~s. on thf' record. 

MR. ODAM: This is not mad~ in r~suonse 

to th~ Court's inftuiry, but as I Atated 

bf'for~. thf' ~ubnoena ran~~ is one hundred 

mile~. w., would object to the isAuance of 

a subuoena outsidP of the ran~e and I don't 

know what 11>ould be the nrouer time to rAi~P 

that ob.1ect-lon, now or l8tPr, but f.f i.t is 

now, I now r~isP it. 

MR. MITCHELL: I hAd initiAlly reouested 

a waiver nf the notfcf' and a reftUf'St to fill 

that ~an th~t I would be re~u-lred to see if 

they i~nored nr honorPd -It, but it is --

THE MASTER: Well, of course, where you 

intend to have the subooena served, that iA 

a matt~r beyond my knowled~P. She may drive 

down to Victoria ~nd be within the one hun~red 

m:f.les for ~ll I knol"· 

It is thP wftnpss' orero~attv~. 

Well, I will si~n the subuoena. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jud~e. 
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THE MASTER: Well, I will si~n the 

2 subooena. 

3 
MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jud~e. 

4 
You ~rP ~oin~ to wh~t oara~raoh, John? 

5 
MR. ODAM: 7 throu~h 1.2. 

6 THE MASTER: Off thP record. 

7 

8 
(Discussion off thP record.) 

9 
THE MASTER: You may oroceed. Mr. Odam. 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 
!rr,_MR. ODAM: 

16 Q JudJ:te Carrillo, I show you thf' cooy of the oro-

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

ceedin~~ for Dec.-mber l?th. 

MR. ODAM: Jud~e Mey.-rs, do you have ~ 

cooy of i.t? 

THE MASTER: Yes, s~r. however, Mr. 

Mitchell doPS not. 

MR. MITCHELL: No, I do not, but if I 

could look ov.-r my client's shoulder, thf'n 

I can do it that way. 

THE MASTER: You can do that. 
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Q (ny Mr. Odam:) I wtll a~k you to turn to na~e 1641 

I would like to clarify ~ome of the testimony thPre 

MR. MITCHELL: If Couns~l iR goin~ to 

ask him to look at the record, I am sattsffpd 

my client has enou~h nrofessional back~round 

to read thP record and --

THE MASTER: You can look over h{!'l 

shoulder if you feel that "'" necessary. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. Jud~e Meyers. 

THE WITNESS: All rt ~~:ht, ~ tr. 

Q This t.s about the tf.me that Mr. MHchell bt>~an 

to I'Uk you ~ seri.ps of ~ue!ltf.ons, and I wf.ll ask 

you tn refrr to lfne 1.2 and read the f!Uestion and 

snswer. 

A Une 12? 

Q Yes, str. 

Q Yt-!11, str. 

A "And now, ynu w,-,uld note the l)osi.tion of the 

A rtf.clf's e~f thto sneciftcations herr that you 

an~wer~d into, first of all, "' l)artner~hf.D in MAy, 

1971 ?" 

Q And what wl't!! your answer? 

A YPs, :o;ir. 

Q And nnw, I would like for you to a~ain toxamine --

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTI 1 TEXAS 7840, 



~766 

Mr. Mttch~11 rPfPrred to Articles and S~Pcificationl 

2 
~nd I orPsumP it would bP the First AmpndPd NoticP. 

3 
A It is a notp that I entPrPd into a oartnershi~ 

4 
Q Turn to thp Fir!':t Amended Not{cp of thp Formal 

5 
Proceedtn~~ and noint out wherP you say that alle-

6 ~ation of a n8rtnershtn Is contained. 

7 A That is ri~ht. 

8 

9 A It fs not in ArticlP 7. 

10 Q WPll, is it in Article 8? 

11 A No, sir. 

12 Q Is it in Article q? 

13 A No, it is in none of these Articles that I read 

14 from. The ~artnershin came uo durin~ Mr. CoulinP.'s 

15 testimony. 

16 0 WPll, ~oinJ! back to the nUf'stf.on, you will note 

17 

18 

19 

20' 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

it h the ~O!'d tion of tip Articles and Snecifieation 

that you entPred into, first of all, a ~artnershi~ 

i.n M1.1y, 1971. 

MR. MITCHELL: ThP sPntPncP is 8 fra~-

mentary sentence. I eommPnce the nuP.stion 

and thPn brPak off the nuP.stion. 

ThPrP is no alle~ation of 8 nartnershfp 

and that is a 'la!!is for our orf'•trial motf.ons 

and 
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THE WITNESS: 

2 on 1 infO 20. 

3 MR. ODAM: All ri~ht, ~ir. 

'IR, MITCHELL: It ts unfair to nu~stton 

s " w t tn P !'I "' - -

6 THE WITNESS: Line 19, ynu had no nart-

7 ner, and I ~8id I had none what!'loever. 

8 Q Will you a~rf"~ with Mr. Mitch~ll that the alle~a-

9 tions i.n th~ Articlt> of Snf!'ci.fic•tions, as hE' 

10 

II a nartner~~{n stRtt>d therP. 

n A That i.s corrPct. 

13 Q So the anl!lwPr tn t.,h f'UE'Stion, whit: would be your 

14 answer to that narttcular nuestion1 

IS Ynu will notE' tht> nosttion nf thE' Article 

16 nf SnPcificatinn~ wtth rt>Rnf!'ct to a nartnershin. 

17 Dn you see anythfnR li.ke that? 

18 A No, sir. 

19 

110 

a1 

/ .-... -· 
_.....--/~/ 

~ ............ ----· 
/'/ 

/ 
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Now, referring to Page 3642, if you could, read 

the question that begins on Line 4 there, please, 

sir, and your answer to that question. 

"All right. Now, the total cost --" let me ask 

you 

The total what? 

Cost. 

Okay. 

Let me ask you some oral questions. First of all, 

the checks that came in April of '71, that came 

in April of 1 71, that period of time, they are in 

evidence here, of course, and are reflected on youx 

tax return in the manner which the records already 

speaks, am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, Judge Carrillo, I believe by that question, 

Mr. Mitchell is referring to all the checks that 

were in evidence to you? 

Mr. Odam, I have been on the stand for -- since I 

believe a week ago last Thursday and I can't 

remember exactly. 

Well, in clarification of the answer to that 

particular question, would you agree that not all 

of the checks which are written out to you were 

indicated on your tax return to clarify that 
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6 

7 

8 

9 A 

10 Q 

II A 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

ia 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 Q 

25 A 

answer. I refer specifically to refresh your 

memory to a check for a thousand eighteen dollars 

that we discussed and also a check for a thousand 

two hundred that was indicated as a loan, but as 

the Master pointed out, the testimony was in dispu e 

as to whether or not that was an advance. 

Mr. Kirkland stated that those two were not 

on the income tax return. 

Yes, but can I explain that? 

Yes. 

After Mr. Kirkland testified for the first time, 

since the filing of that tax return, do I realize 

that perhaps it was not reported like I say. My 

practice is, and perhaps even a bad one, is that 

all -- all checks that are paid to me, for 

whatever purpose, are deposited. Then, those 

deposits are returned to me with a statement at 

the end of the month. 

Now, I never open the statements. The 

statements are kept in the file until the end of 

the year when it comes time to work up the income 

tax returns, then, we work on them and send 

everything to Mr. Kirkland. 

Well, my question 

It's supposed to be taken up by the accountant and 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

& 

7 

8 

9 Q 

10 

11 A 

1:1! 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 Q 

18 

J1 

aa far aa I know, to the beat of ay kaowladsa and 

belief, everything that ia paid to •• throuah a 

cheek would have bean reported baeauae ay poattion 

ia that I have reported everythina. If throu&h 

error the accountant failed to pick it up or 

something at the time that I made the atat .. ant. 

insofar as I was concerned, everything has bean 

reported. And I still think it has. 

You think that the thousand eighteen haa been 

reported? 

If it was missed, it was missed through an error 

which should have bean caught by the accountant 

and the amendment, I gueaa, ought to be aade as 

far as that is concerned. But my intention has , 

always been, you will notice that it 1••• thr•u<ho1t 

all of that, that those cheeks are depoaited ani · 

taken up by the accountant. 

Well, you would agree, however, in light of 

Mr. Kirkland's testimony, that thoae particular 

ones, for whatever reaaon, whether or not 

Mr. Kirkland made an error and they were not 

reported to him, that not all the checks which are 

in evidence were reported; wouldn't you agree that 

in light of Mr. Kirkland'• testimony is the status 

of the record? 
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MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Your Honor. 

I don't know whether that objection -- that 

question is subject to the objection reported. 

Now, twelve hundred item -- the twelve hundre( 

dollar item is labeled loan. It wouldn't be 

reported. It doesn't have to be reported. 

THE MASTER: Well, it may or may not be. 

Of course, the accountant did not have the 

check, couldn't have the check, testified 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right. 

~HE MASTER: Judge Carrillo has teatifiec 

that it was a loan only in a sense; that it 

was an advance of rentals that were owed. 

MR. MITCHELL: Right. 

THE MASTER: And would be credited 

against the total amount of rentals on the 

wate.r well rig. 

MR. MITCHELL: Right. 

THE MASTER: That was being used. 

MR. MITCHELL: Notwithstanding the 

item contained alone --

THE MASTER: Irrespective, it may well 

be legal income to him. 

Now, the fact that it's not on a return 

is not a matter that we are considering here. 
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21 
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MR. MITCHELL: And the 1018 said, as 

I understand it, Your Honor, said transfer of 

funds . 

THE MASTER: That is correct. 

MR. MITCHELL: So, to that extent it has 

been reported. The use of the word reported --

THE WITNESS: I imagine that I received 

all of those checks. 

(By Mr. Odam) So, you would acknowledge receipt 

of the check for a thousand eighteen? 

Yes, I do.· 

Received a check for a thousand two hundred? 

Yes, I acknol>Tledge that. 

But you would agree as far as reporting to the 

Internal Revenue Service by way of the 1040 form, 

whether or not they were income or not, that not 

all of the checks in evidence were actually 

reported? That is the question. I am not 

arguing about whether or not it was you thought 

it was income or whoever prepared the work sheets 

for it. 

Like I say, I can see·where the loan might have 

been mixed up. If on the deposit slips it showed 

loan, twelve hundred dollars, then, I was not the 

only one that made up this work papers and if it 
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z 
, 
• 
5 

I 
I ., I 

I !. 

• 
10 Q 

II 

12 

II A 

It 

1$ 

II 

17 Q 

II 

II 

• 
n A 

• Q 

• A 

It 

• 

vaa a loan, it aight not have been included •• 

incoae because they noticed that on the -- now. 

this ia juat speculation on my part, that on the 

deposit alip that fita that loan, and that would 

not be included in the coluan that vent in for 

income. Jut I aight have, Mr. Odaa, aa I will 

confeaa, I aight have aade a aiatake in thinking 

that everyting had been reported and aight have 

misaed an it... If I did --

Well, I just a~ply want to clarify for the record 

that the statement on that particular page, 3642, 

is that all the checka you received were reported 

At the time the atatement waa made, to ay beat 

information and belief that waa correct and aiEht 

still be; I don't know. Like I aaid, I couldn't 

understand or read my own type of return. 

I refer you, Judge Carrillo, to Page 3642 aaain 

and aak you if you could read the question and 

answer that appears at Line 18 and the anaver at 

l'age -- or at Line 22, pleaae, air • 

Line 22. 

Yea, sir. Firat of all, the question at Line 18. 

All right. 

"All right. Row, the reaaon that I pointed 

that up, and that ia on that page in &-91, that 
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9 A 

10 

11 Q 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

11 

18 

19 

20 Q 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 A 

.is the detail analysis contained in R-91 of the 

rent tncome; am I correct, Judge Carrillo? 

Ana~·er. Yes, sir. 11 

Now, is :t your testimony, Judge Carrillo, that 

R-91, R-92 and R-93 would reflect the rent income 

of the Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

MR. MITCHELL: The question was that 

page in R-91. 

There is a page in here that we were referring to, 

Mr. Odam, if I might --

All right. I believe I kmw what you're --

THE MASTER: It's a page that has the 

'73 information on it. It starts -- the 

beginning entry is 12-12 entry. 

MR. MITCHELL: '72. 

THE MASTER: '72, and that is where I 

got confused Friday, but it 1 s a 1 73 figure 

that Mr. Mitchell was inquiring about. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, I understand. 

(By Mr. Odam) If I might look at that question 

again. Maybe I -- right. The question is: That 

is on Page R-91. That is a detailed analysis that 

is contained in R-91 of the rent income, am I 

correct? 

Yes, sir. 
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Now, I would like for you to look at that 

particular page in R-91 and it's your testimoay, 

that that is a detailed analysis of rent incoae? 

It shows here that Mr. Couling was receiving rent 

from bulldozers, winch truck, tractors. 

Well, let me, if I might, interrupt you to aak som~ 
I 
I questions on that. 

Do you know who prepared R-91? I 

No, sir, this was delivered by you, Mr. Odaa, to 

us. 

And do you know who made those particular notation~ 
that you're referring to there? 

No, sir, I have no idea. 

If I could turn to mine, end Judge, I am sorry, 

because I don't have an additional copy of it. 

MR. MITCHELL: I have reproduced that 

page. 

MR. ODAM: Oh, you did? 

MR. MITCHELL: For that reason. Ia it 

all right if I hand -- Judge, this is the 

pas• that he is -- 1272. 

THE MASTER: Yes, thank you. 

(By Mr. Odam) And let's look at what you say is a 

page of rent income. The first entry there says, 

"Rent on tractors." 

----~--------------------------------------~-
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Yee. 

And I think you •• .d the other day, "CoUDty road." 

I think -- la that county road or vide? 

CoUDtywlde . 

Q "Countywide." And it aaya, "~iro Carrtllo and 

Brothere." 

A. Yee, air. 

Q Firat of all, can you explain what that notation 

in total would aean7 What doea that .. an? 

MI.. KITCHELL: lxcuae ae. May I approach 

the bench, Your Honor, and get one of the 

tax returna. The lady needa a Social SecuritY; 

n\Db3r. I am sorry to lnt:errupt, Judge 

Meye·:a. I • aorry . 

(Whereupon, an off-the-record 

diacuaalon vas had.) 

TRI MASTE&z Back on the record, 

Mr. Owen . 

Q (By Mr. Od-) If I could --

MI.. KITCHELL: I - aorry about: that 

iaterruptlon, Judge Meyera, but: t:he lady 

needed the Social Securlt:y form • 

~ MASTE&1 Yee • 
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(ly Mr. Od .. ) Tha firat entry tbara, "Rant on 

tractor, countywide, l.aairo Carrillo and lroU.era." 

Yoe. 

Could you explain to me what that particular 

notation aaane? 

Well, I think the ona that praparad it ahould be 

tha pereon who explaina it. 

MR. KITCHELL: Wall, that wae my 

obeervation, but I might inetruct my client 

that be didn't hava anything to do with 

preparing of thie document, Judge. 

THE WITNESS: Yea. 

(By Kr. Odaa) So, I taka it that your anewer 

would be that you don't know, but whoever prepared. 

it would know? 

Kl., MITCHELL: In fact, we would ~ike 

to know who it ie and parhape we can eubpoana i 

hia and find the eourca of hie information. 

If Kr. Odam carae to reveal who prepared it. 

THE WITRESS: I don't have the elightaet 

idea. I 
THE KASTER: Well, you can etand and mak• 

I 

a reqaeet, Couneel, but you, of couree, can't\ 
I 

atart quaationing your own vitneee while ' 

Kr. Odaa hal him on croaa-exaaination. 
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MR. MITCHELL: I didn't intend to do 

that. I was making a request of that name 

and perhaps we can --

THE MASTER: That may take up after 

recess. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

(By Mr. Odam) Well, you're familiar with whatever 

is down here as Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers? 

I can read. 

And Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers -- is Ramiro 

Carrillo your brother? 

Yes. 

And t take it that there must be some other 

brothers, Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers. You're 

one. 

Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers is a trust involving 

we are six children plus some grandchildren; that 

is the trust and sort of a partnership that was 

set up by my father and my mother for the benefit 

of the children and grandchildren. 

And what is the name of your father? As the recorc 

speaks to it, would this be D. C. Chapa? 

David Carrillo Chapa. It's an old Spanish custom 

to have the mother's last name, and you will find 

it all in this area. So, it's very confusing. 
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Q 1 see. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

1 realize that. 1 thought 1 had explained that. 

In the straight family tree, he is your father 

and that was a question 1 had 

My grandfather on my father's side was a Carrillo 

and my grandmother on my father's side was a Chapa. 

I see. 

And that was the --

The trust was set up for the six children and some 

grandchildren? 

There are six of us children born out of the 

marriage of my father and my mother, plus s~veral 

grandchildren. There are twenty-seven now, but 

there weren't at the time the trust waa created. 

Would Rogelio Guajardo be one of those children? 

Yes. 

Is Paul Ramirez one of the children? 

Who? 

Paul Ramirez? 

We don't have any Paul Ramirez in the family that 

1 know of. 

Is there a David Carrillo? 

Yes. 

And whose son is he? 

Oscar, my brother. There are two Davids. There 
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la David Carrillo and David Carrillo, Jr. 

Q David Carrillo la Oacar'a eon? 

A Oscar'• son . 

Q This is Senator Carrillo or foraar Senator Carrillo~ 

A Former. 

Q Nov, ia there a David B. Carrillo? 

A David Carrillo and David B. Carrillo ia one and 

the same 

Q Okay. y,)u said there waa a David Carrillo, Jr . 

A David B. Carrillo, the eon, David Carrillo. 

Q And bow nld is that eon, the last one, the Junior? ' 

A The last one? 

Q Yea. 

A I would say eight or ten years old . 

Q Would he be D. C. Chapa's great-grandchild? 

A Great-grandson. 

Q Great-grandson. 

Bow, Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers ia a trust. 
I 
' 

Well, the six children -- you're 

in the trust or how is that set up? 

a participan, 

A 

I 
I 

It was divided into aix shares of the estate of 
I 
I 
I 

ay father which ay father and ay aother owned, 

and each one of the children got one. For example~ 

I have a full share, and ay brother, Oscar, for 

exa.ple, would be entitled to another ahara, 
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except that his might have been divided into 

he got some and his children got some and so 

forth. That is the way it went. 

I see. So, whatever this entry means, "Rent on 

tractor-countywide-Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers," 

would you have gotten -- would you as part of the 

trust have rented, if that is what that means, 

rent on the tractor? Your trust would have rented 

this to Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

All right. Now, insofar as that trust is concerne , 

I have nothing whatsoever with the -- as a matter 

of fact, it's carried on the tax returns -- on the 

tax books as 0. P. Carrillo and Brothers. Actual! , 

it's set up as Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers. 

I see. Well, who administers --

As distinguished from 0. P. Carrillo, trustee, 

because I was named by my father as trustee for 

several of the grandchildren, to watch for their 

interests. 

Well, who had -- well, assume for the moment 

where it states "Rent on tractor-countywide-

Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers." 

Yes. 

Assuming that that was a rental of a tractor from 

Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers, who would be -- if 
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not you, who would it be that Mr. Couling would 

have dealt with in dealing with Ramiro Carrillo 

and Brot~1.ers? 

It would have been from Ramiro Carrillo because he 

sort of -- that particular interest in the estate. 

I see. 

And received the checks and is it one that is 

authorized to write checks on Ramiro Carrillo and 

Brothers account that is worked in at the end of 

the year, taken over to the auditors. That is why 

he stated that he has to fix, for example, my 

income tax 

Oh, that's right. 

-- because he would have to receive the income 

from the various trusts and partnerships. 

I remember that. 

Well, Mr. Kirkland has testified when we went 

through the tax returns where that trust is picked 

up and part of the income, however Ramiro Carrillo 

and Brothers gets it, he figures out how you get 

some and Oscar gets some and Ramiro --

He has a formula and he tells me again, you're 

entitled to this and that is it. 

How abou~ the corpus of the trust, how is it 

handled ?r what is the -- what is the trust? What 
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is the --

Well, the trust involves approximately twelve or 

thirteen thousand acres, farmland, approximately 

a thousa1d head of cattle, oil royalties, oil 

leases, 1unting leases, and I don't know what 

else. I know that part is included in there, 

equipment that is owned, horses. 

Is there equipment that is owned 

Trucks, cattle -- I mean trailers, tractors, 

because it's farmland and grazing land. 

These trucks and trailers and tractors, well, 

tractors, for example, your trust -- or the one 

and I use the term your very broadly. TI1e trust, 

and by t1at I am referring to the benefit of the 

record i~ questions to you, Ramiro Carrillo and 

Brothers; the trust would rent a truck, for 

example, to Mr. Couling. 

I don't ~ave anything to do with that at all, with 

the operation of that trust. 

Well, assuming that, for example, here the rents 

on tractor, if it were rented and if it were rentec 

by Ramir·:> Carrillo and Brothers, that ultimately 

Mr. Kirkland -- if this were all reported back, 

Mr. Kirkland would pick that up as a portion of 

that -- well, for example, here, the three hundred 
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and seven dollars and five cents, that maybe that 

you woul·l get one-sixth of that income would be 

reported on your income tax return? 

Yes, sir. 

Well, I >robably covered it in my earlier question 

then. S·>ecifically, do you know anything about 

your tru~t renting a particular tractor to 

Mr. Coultng? 

No, sir, I do not •. 

Now, the second entry there. It says, "Rent on 

0. P. 's two D-8 dozers." 

Yes. 

Could you explain what the particular entry means? 

No, sir, 1 cannot explain it because I didn't writ 

it or furnish the information on it. 

So, you don't know whether or not that means that 

two dozers were rented to the county or that that 

particular check went to make payments on the two 

dozers, La that correct? 

I don't know. I have no idea. Like I say, the 

perhaps Mr. Couling was the one that furnished 

that information or somebody else; I don't knov . 

Well, let's go down to the next one that you 

covered the other day, "Second payment on --" what 

is that word? 
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A "Payment on barbed wire, Farm and Ranch." 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Barbed wire. Would this be -- well, and -- Farm 

and Ranch. Is this the Farm and Ranch Store that 

you and your brother own half interest in? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, what do you think that entry means? 

I can't think what it means. I do know that 

Farm and Ranch is sort of a distributorship. You 

see, you get franchises from different companies. 

Once you get a franchise in an area, that company 

cannot do business with other stores like, for 

example, I will use the Air Motor Windmill Company. 

We have the franchise for Air Motors for the area. 

So, I know that stores from as far as Hebbronville 

who have a customer who is insisting on an air 

motor would have to buy it through us. They would 

have to come and buy the windmill from Farm and 

Ranch so they can resell it to their customers 

because Air Motor will not sell to them. Air 

Motors will only sell to us in the area and if 

On this --

On barbed wire, also, it might be coming from 

another company whose franchise we would have and 

there are different typea of barbed wires, that 

much I do know. There is foreign barbed wire and 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840t 



I 
I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 Q 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 A 

20 

21 (1 

22: 

23 

a.c A 

25 

3786 

American barbed wire. If you have the franchise -

I mean one company is going to sell to you when 

somebody is looking for the American barbed wire, 

which we do have, and Mr. Couling made the 

statement that he had sold, I think, twelve thousard 

dollars worth of barbed wire to the county at one 

particular sale. He might have been paying on it 

I can't 3peculate. I thought I would explain that 

because '"e are -- our store is not -- it's sort of 

a wholesale store that sells like auto parts. We 

sell to the different mechanic shops in town and 

things like that. 

Well, on the second payment on barbed wire, again, 

the testimony was, and up until this point, of 

course, we have to rely on what you stated the 

analysis to be. Would you agree that probably 

Farm and Ranch did not rent barbed wire to the 

county, >ut if it did, it sold barbed wire? 

No, you ion't rent barbed wire. When it's gone, 

All righ:. And that was my point, that perhaps 

this lis: reflects things other than simply rent 

income. Would you agree with that? 

Oh, I am sure of that because I don't think 

anybody ~entad Felipe Valerio and he is listed 
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there. 

That wae my next question. That's the way you 

identified it here. 

"Now, the reason I pointed that up, and that 

was on Page R-91, this ia a detailed analysis 

containing R-91 of the rent income, am I correct, 

Judge Carrillo~' and your answer was yea, air. 

Isn't it true that this is not a detailed 

analysis of rent income; that there are things 

on here that we don't even know what they are for? 

They might be for rent income and they might not 

be for rent income. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me. The question 

ts argumentative. I asked the question and 

maybe I can state that what items were 

obviously rental income. that it purports to 

be, and as far as the Examiner furnished it 

thro•Jgh the Attorney General' s office, a 

detailed analysis, but, of course, not to the 

contrary; that it was exclusively rental 

income. 

THE MASTER: That is a point counsel is 

making and he is entitled to make it. Your 

objection is overruled. 

THE WITNESS: Go ahead. 
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2 

3 

5 

6 to thP ~ounty. WP rMChed thi~ ~nrl the re~or~ 

7 ~~Y~ -- would vou ~vrPe with me ~nmP of it may 

8 bP r~nt , anrl we ~rP nnt to this ooint of whethPr 

9 thinp~ w~re rente~ to the county, but would you 

10 n~rPP, unte~~ ft ~necfftca1lv ~av~ rental, we 

11 

12 

13 A I ~~n't Rhf'rl lf.pht on this instrument. About 

It 

15 to be Rome ~ort of rental. 

" Q Let's look at the one on 1-12-7~. Ramfro Carrillo 

17 and Brothers. There are a number of them? 

18 A Yes. 

W Q Tht~ is c1atm D-776, and th~t wa~ • check for 

10 

21. 

three hundred thfrty-two dnllAr~. 

What do you think thAt me~ns where it A~ys 

Ramtro Carrillo and Brotherq1 

tion. 

MR. MITCHELL: That ~•11~ for Aoecula-

THE MASTER: If the witness has a oerr.ona 
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TilE WIT~SS: I hA•·p no nflrt~~nn•l know,-

Real ro Carri t to Md Brot h .. r,.? 

A Yfl~t, I told you ~~t•che and at~to I think thpy c.~~tll 

it fire rock. It 

of tho~~ olts, ~hlch ls nuitP -- ft brtn• In mor~ 

mon~y than of.,. 

Q Ok~tv. 

~kfo th~ rPnt on thfl two dozers. 

A HP wa" marrt .. d to my sister. 

0 So ht" is your broth .. r-tn-law. 

A Ye!ll. 

Q And, ·~"in, do ynu havt" any nPrsonal know~~ .. 

"" to that notation? 

Q WhPrP ft says ~ountywldP, Ramiro C.~~trrllln an~ 

Brothprs, what iR that for? Is that a sale or 

rental? 

A On all of thPRP 'f.tems herP, I would hav~ to 
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!'ltH•culatE'. I would havP to ~uess or soeeulate, 

because I have no knowledFe whatsoever as to how 

th{A i.nformatinn got hPre. I was t'lur~rised to 

ftnd tt, but I ~ve noknowled~e of it. 

Q And i.t says Farm and Ranch Store? 

Q Thr !'lame thin~. you don't know what the notation 

nf that ts, that you own a half interest in? 

A I own a half interest in the t~~tore, but I don't 

run it at all or dnn't know ~"hat i.A gof~ on. 

Q And again, I mi~ht come on somPt~i.ng ~e could 

!'!bed light on, so "'here it says Cater~illar D-8, 

dn you know anythin~ about that? 

A No. 

Q Were you aware a Cateroillar was bou~ht at ~lains 

Maeh~nery by the county through Benavides Imole-

A No, t~at is the first time 1 ever heard of that 

~n my llfe. 

0 All rhht. 

THE MASTER: Is thil'l a ~ro~er time for 

MR. ODAM: If I could 1ust ask one 

further nuest~.on, Your Honnr. 

THE MASTER: Yes, that iA fine. 
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2 ~om~thfng P1~P tn ~o intn. 

3 () N"'"'· I ~hO'"-' ynu, ~~tnd thf.~ is not i.n evfdpnc~, end 

it •~ to rPfresh your rPco11Pct{on. but it fe 11 

s VP11ow cerd for notes rPcetveble~ 

6 A Ye!'l. 

7 0 And the nltmP iR for Precinct '' 

8 A YP~. 

9 Q And does that rPfre~h your memory as to "" 

10 C:Ateroi llar that bPlflnJ!'ed to thP county, l)Urchased 

11 frnm Plains M~~tchinPry? 

12 A I h~~tvP not thP Rlf.J!:htest {~ell what this is. 

13 MR. ODAM: I corrPct what I ~atd 11 

14 whtle ~~t~o. it was ~imoly 11 notes receivable 

15 card, ~~~ thP card indicates, and we don't 

16 It doPsn't say any-

17 thin~ ~~tbnut BPnavfdes Imolement end Herd-

18 ware, so I wil.l correct that. 

19 Q It dn~sn't say anythfn~ about Ben~~tvides Imolement 

20 ~~tnd Hardware, does ~t. Jud~P Cerrillo~ 

21 A No, sir, I don't !lee it. 

23 

24 

2S 

MR.MITCHELL: May I see it, olease. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, you m11y. 

Your Honf"lr, I th~nl<. thi~ 'toH1Jld bP en 
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'fR. MI"CHELL: I~ thi~ a nurchas~ of A 

machine by Hr. Coul"'nJ! from Pl11i.ns for Duv,ql 

County and if so, I must ~ur~ue i.t. 

THE MASTER: You may ~tsk Counsel, as ,. 

matter of courtesy, but I orPfer thAt you 

do that on your own time. 

MR. MITCHELL: All rt~ht, Jud~e. 

THE "fA:>TER: You c11n obviously ask Mr. 

CoulinJ!' about it. 

MR. MI~CHELL: May I h11ve this marked~ 

THE MASTER: Y~s, ~hen it is your time. 

Anythin~ that i.s hand~d to the Mtness, o~~os-

tn~ eounsel is ~ermftted to see. 

MR. MITCHELt: Thank you, Judge. 

THE MASTER: And you may do whatever vou 

"'ant to wi.th it. 

Thank you, Mr. Vernon, you 11re excused. 

We w-Ill now tak~ our break. 

MR. MITCq[LL: Wel1, one further thin~ • 

Your Honor, Mr. Odam does strike from his 

THE MASTER: The witn~ss 11nswered that 

ImolemPnt and Hardware. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. 
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THE MASTER: w~ will takP. bre8k. 

(A ~hort recess was t~ken.) 

THE MASTER: On the recor~. 

Mr. Or~m. the nuestinn Mr. Mitchell 

addre~sed tn me out~lde, that I thou~ht ought 

not to be in your absence, was about the 

~ub~oPnA to Mr~. Gibson, who is the custodian 

nf thP income ta~ return~ in Austin! the 

de~ire bein£ to get a 71 return of Mr. 

Coulin£ •. 

Mr. Mitchell was su~gestin~ to me that 

I renueat the officer to drive to Austin 

and ,ersnnally serve Mrs. Gibson !'lO shl' could 

~re~are and certify to Mr. Cnulin~'s 1971 

return, not that she would have to be here 

would be admis~ible. I ~m reluctant to make 

that rPnUe!'lt of the officer and I ~UP.S!'l my 

nuestinn to vou :f.fl, do you have any SUJl:ges-

t{on, nreferences or what? 

Nnw, you would not 8~Z:ree to the takin£ 

of her de~n~i tion. and that is i.mmaterial 

to mP, and I think orobably unnecessary. 

~uch a~reement is necessary, nerha~s. but 
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I think th~ way th{~ h~arfn• ha~ gone, Counsel 

is enrftlerl to that return, because Mr. 

Couling hns testified to a numbr of thin~s 

and it fs certainly ooss{ble the 71 income 

ta~ return wftl be inconsistent with that 

testimony. 

I susoect we will be here as late as 

Mr. Mitchell, what is wrong with outtfng 

it on ~bus or h~vfng Mr. Piok1n or the 

'1.P.S. man un there to !'!erve ft. I don't 

t:now, you h111ve been using the bus, tell mto. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge Meyers, there is 

nothing • .,ron~ ~.,ith tt, eYceot the lady is 

not going to honor an informal renuest, She 

needs to be served. 

THE MASTER: I say have Mr. Maurice 

Ptnkin or the D.P.S. d~ltveT it to her. 

MR. MITCHELL: Wrll, Your Honor, I 

know when they want to get th~se originals, 

they gPt on the airolane and get them and 

I l!lm not fussing about thnt, I am glad to 

see thnt the Attorney Gener~l has all the 

helo hE' can get. 

MR. ODAM: Ms. Levntfno dfd not go uo 
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there and ~P.t that for the benefit of 

clartftcltt~on. It camP dnwn on the Conti-

nent11l bus, !believe, or commercial airline. 

THE MASTER: Your su~~estion i~. Mr. 

Mitchell, th11t the officPr could ~o uo 

t~ere anrl waft on hPr tn nroduce it? 

MR. MITCHELL: He could, by the relay 

~ystem, do th11t, Your Honor. 

THE ~STER: He df~n't SPem to know 

~hat we wprp talkin~ about when we were talk-

fn~ about a relay system, lit }past as I 

understl'tnd ~t. He said he could ~o there 

himself. We can ~et hfm in and ask him, I 

WhPn do you want it, e7CPnt rf~ht n~w. 

I !'IU'POOI'If", 

MR. MITCHELL: w~tl, when Mr. Coulin~ 

l!ets here. 

THE MASTER: Yes, you would havP to have 

it for your e~amination of Mr. Coulin~. 

MR. ~ITCHELL: Yes, Jud~e. 

THE MASTER: I can see that, but that 

won't start until sometime t~morrow, as I 

1'1 ee it. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is correct, Ju:1 ~e. 
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THE MASTER: 

lady? 

MR. ~ITCHELL: No, I h*P not, Mr. 

Mrs. Gibson. 

MR. CUTWRIGHT: Sh~ said she would h8v~ 

to ~et thos~ from the files in Ft. Worth 

And she said ~he could have ft in the Austin 

office by tomorrow. Sh~ s~fd before she 

di.d anythinP., she would need a !!Ubooena in 

hand. 

THE MASTER: Who besides me can issue 

subnoenael!l? 

MR. MITCHELL: I don't think he is 

recop:nfzefl. 

THE MASTER: My obvious thoup:ht was 

to ohone Aul!ltfn and have someone ~uthorized 

tn issue • subooenB uo there, issue it and 

2P.t it servf'd. 

MR. MITCHELL: I don't know of anyone. 

Does the Commil!lsion have that authority? 

MR. ODAM: I think thP chairman of thf' 

Commission mf2ht be, but ~e ran into this 

nufl'l!l tion. I think Mr. Pfokin doeg not have 

the authority. 
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MR. MITCHELL: I 11prE'e wit~ you, . 1 ~hn, 

THE MASTER~ 

Cnmmi~~lnn living in Austin? 

MR. ODAM: YPR, si.r,·Mr. RobE-rt HcGinni!l. 

MR. MITCHELL: 

MR. ODAM: MPmbPr. 

THF. MASTER: Wrll, Mr. Mitchell, hE> 

would, of course, be at lunch right no~. 

tion of .Jud~P Carrillo and you 11nd I wtl1 

~Pt wtth Mr. Od11m 8nd all t~rPe of us use 

the telP11honE' to gE't in touch t.Ji th Mr. 

McGinnis and SPe if hP would sign a subooena 

8nd rpnu~st -- wPll, any oeace officer to 

servP it, the sheriff or any D.P.S. officPr. 

MR. MITCHELL: YPs, that is flnP, Jud~e. 

THE ~STER: I think we can ~Pt it to 

hPr todAy, I think tf I talk to Bob McGinnis 

that he will do that for us. 

Mr. Cutwrtght, would you ~Pt the nfff~pr 

in a minute? 

MR. CUTWRIGHT: Yrs, •:i.r. 

THE MASTER: Officf'r, ~·>hat we arE> going 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840, 



~ 
i 

2 'I 
,. 

I 

3 'I 

:I • 
5 ii 
• :i ,'. 

' 
I 

7 I 
8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

Jj 

15 

16 

17 

•• 
11 

., 
21 

• 
IS 

M 

25 

tn dn t~ nnt fmon~• on vnu. tf w• don't hav• 

tn. I a111 ~nf nP. tn call • 111•mber of tl'•• 
Judtcf at Qu•1. f fleet tons Collltlli~" i.nn that 

!i!Ubon•n•. 

Maurice Pfokin1t officf". 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, I am sure they 

~ould hev• a form. 

T!fE MASTER: I tmep:tne Mr. Piokf.n would 

nr could dn that. 

MR. ODAM: Ye~. I am surP h• wnuld. 

THE MASTER: WerP ynu brou~ht ov•r 

•specially, Officf"r? 

D.P.S. OFFICER: Well, the offtcPr out 

THE MASTER: All rhht, !'lir, he cellf'~ 

you, I !'IUOoo!'l "'? 

D.P.S, OFFICER: Yes, !'lir • 

THE MASTER: TPll Officer Ce!'ltillo we 

erf" hoof"ful we can handle it . 

you. 

D.P.S. OFFICER: That is fine, thank 

T~ MASTER: It ~eems to mf" it is a 
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waste of a n8trolman'~~: tim~ to ~o all of 

the way to Au~tin for this when I may be 

able to h~ndlP it. 

ThP D.P.S. ha8 been heloful and courteouA 

to us fn this heartn~. 

D.P.S. OFFICER: Thank you, sir. 

THE MASTER: You m~y oroceed, Mr. Odam. 

Q (By Mr. OdAm:) Jud~e c~rrlllo, ri~ht orior to 

the break, ! was tn the orocess nf clarlfyin~ for 

my nwn mind And for the benefit nf the record the 

answer to thP ~uestlon at 1642, that is thAt this 

oa~e i.s a det&i led analyst~~: of the rent income. 

We h~tve ~one throu~h somP of them and if you have 

R-91, I would like to refer to oa~e 6. 

A Yes, sir. 
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This is one I think I had gotten to, and I skipped 

back up to the top and I refer back to it now. 

It's on March the 12th, 1973 for three hundred and 

thirty-two dollars. 

Do you have any personal knowledge of the 

trust to Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers; what was 

that about? 

No. 

And who would this be that could clarify that? 

Ramiro. 

Ramiro Carrillo 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me. Clarify that, 

you mean, the entry, Counsel? May I address 

the counsel, Judge, as to the substance --

THE WITNESS: No, anything that has to 

do with Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers, Ramiro 

will explain. What is on here --

(By Mr. Odam) Right. I am referring to the first 

part of the sentence, what Ramiro Carrillo could 

explain on this --

MR. MITCHELL: It's understood that 

Ramiro Carrillo didn't have anything to do 

with this. 

THE MASTER: Certainly, this has been 

identified as a document prepared 
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MR. MITCHELL: By the Attorney General? 

THE MASTER: I was going to say by the 

Attorney General or someone under his 

direction. 

MR. MITCHELL: Right. 

THE MASTER: But not by Judge Carrillo 

or his brother, Ramiro, or anybody else 

connected with that family. 

MR. MITCHELL: That's correct, Your 

Honor. Thank you, Your Honor. That is a 

good statement of the facts. 

(By Mr. Odam) So, where it says Farm and Ranch 

Store and down here where it says Ramiro Carrillo 

and Brothers, you would agree that might be for 

rent or that might be for a sale, or we don't 

know exactly what it means there. 

I don't have the slightest idea what it means. 

Okay. And the second charge on barbed wire, we 

agree you don't rent barbed wire. That might be 

a sale for barbed wire. Countywide, Ramiro 

Carrillo and Brothers, the same thing there, yo1.1 

don't know what that means? 

No, I don't. 

How about down where it says, "Rent on winch 

truck (Ramiro's Cat at Freer)." You know anything 
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about Ramiro Carrillo having a Caterpillar at 

Freer? 

No, I don't. 

And I would take it that if I went through the res 

of this sheet, everywhere where it says countywide, 

you could shed no light on what that transaction 

would be about? 

I can't shed any light on any of this matters. 

And skipping over to the next page, we have some 

rents, some more second payment for barbed wire. 

I don't know anything about any of that or what it 

means. 

And the next page, Felipe Valerio. 

Valerio. 

His name appears again. Ramiro Carrillo and 

Brothers name appears numerous times. Farm and 

Ranch appears. What about this one down here, 

5-20-74, "Steel plates for Ramiro to build a 

trailer." 

I don't know. 

How about this last one, 8-14-74, where it just 

says, "Ramiro Carrillo." That is for nine hundred 

and forty-two dollars and fifty-five cents. 

I don't know anything about it. 

Well, will you agree with me that contrary to the 
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statement the other day, that this was an analysis 

of R-91, that it was not clear exactly what all 

these notations mean? They might be for rent, 

~:here it says rent, and they might not be for 

rents; that it does not speak for itself nor does 

it explain what it's for? 

Only the individual who prepared this instrument 

can explain this instrument to you. I cannot. 

Well, let me rephrase Mr. Mitchell 1 s question t•> 

you or restate. The reason I point that up. That 

is on Page 91. This is a detailed analysis 

containing R-91 of the rent income, am I correct, 

Judge Carrillo? 

Now, what wJuld your answer be to that? What 

do you think that these pages R-91 are? 

I ~qas advised and I made the statement last week 

and I am not trying to be funny, either, that my 

attorney advised me not to guess at anything 

because he was g·>ing to walk out if I started to 

guess. 

liell 

I am n·Jt going to guess. 

Wasn't it a fact that you were guessing when you 

made that answer when Mr. Mitchell asked you the 

question, is this a detailed analysis contained 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

711 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 78~_01_ 



--~----------------------------------------~8~ 

2 

3 A 

4 

s Q 

6 A 

7 

8 Q 

9 

10 A 

11 Q 

12 

13 

14 

15 Q 

16 

17 A 

18 

19 Q 

20 

2l 

22 

23 

24 

25 

in R-91 and you answered that. You guessed 

then? 

No, what I was stating then -- I stated that it 

sho\·7S rents on here, repeatedly. 

But 

And whoever prepared it was stating that it was 

rent. 

Some of them are rents and some of them are not; 

is that a fair --

With very few exceptions, they are rents. 

Well, would you like to go through and see how 

many are made out to Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers 

and how many to Ramiro Carrillo? 

I will reply with whatever questions you ask. 

You think that very few of them are other than 

rent? 

Again, like I say, the instrument is here. I will 

be happy --

It speaks for itself and we won't go through and 

count out the number of dollars that go to 

Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers or the number of 

dollars that go to Ramiro Carrillo or the number 

of dollars that go for the dozers; the record 

can speak for itself and those can be added up. 

I refer to Page 3643 and read the question 
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that appears at the bottom of the page, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Odam, would you aind 

telling me, please, sir, is that my que1tion 

of this witness? 

MR. ODAM: I was getting ready to 1ay. 

The bottom of the page and that is a queltion 

by Mr. Mitchell that begins at Line 23. 

THE MASTER: Page number again? 

MR. ODAM: 3643, question by Mr. Mitchel 

on last Friday. 

Could you read that? 

All right. 

"The rents on, that is your individual 

property, and Ramiro 1 s individual property, read 

them there as I go along and see if you can find 

some individual property. 

Answer: Rents on tractors, county roads, 

Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers." 

Well, was it intended by your testimony then that 

you believe that Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers 

rented equipment to Benavides Implement and 

Hardware, and it in turn would rent it to the 

county? 

It's very hard for me to explain an answer when we 

have a series of things -- I don't know what I 
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might have testified before, what led me to answer 

this particular way. All I can do is read what 

the answer states. 

~ell, let's look back at the question again. Let 

me see if we can state the question to you today. 

"The rents on, that is your individual property, 

and Ramiro's individual property, do you believe, 

for example, that what is stated on here is where 

Ramiro Carrillo rented the individual property to 

Benavides Implement and Hardware?" 

Well, evidently I was reading something there. I 

would like to see what it was that I was readi~g. 

It was that page from R-91. I believe it's tht 

sixth pltge. 

It seems to me that Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers 

was renting something. 

But you don't know that of your own personal 

knowledge if it was or not? 

No, sir, I don't. 

Do you think it seems from this where Ramiro 

Carrillo's name on here that his individual 

property is being rented? 

I don't know. 

Are there any indications on R-91, on this sixth 

page and the one thereafter, that Ramiro Carrillo 
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rented any individual property as Mr. Mitchell 

suggests by that question other than the one I 

pointed out to you where we have some notation£, 

which, I guess, is really the only one, the last 

one? 

Well, there again, it says Ramiro Carrillo and jus 

like Mr. Valerio, I don't think we rented Raairo 

Carrillo out, either. I don't know what they are 

talking about. 

All right. And the question at 3644, the que1tion 

at Line 7. "Was rent on Farm and R.anch property, 

see if there are some entries on there." And the 

answer: Was the second payment on barbed wire, 

Farm and Ranch. 

Would you agree with me that what is reflecte 

there on R.-91, that may be for rent. It may be 

for sales. It's not clear from that if it were 

rentals. Some of it just says R.amiro Carrillo 

and Brothers. We don't know what it's for? 

I am afraid that the only one that can answer that, 

Mr. Odam, is the person that prepared this 

instrument. 

·well, I don't dispute that, but as you can see, 

from the nature of the testimony last week, that 

is not the impression that was left. There are 
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very specific statements that you were making in 

here that appeared to me, at least, that you Wf,re 

saying that you.did know what it was for. 

Well, aa you can see, from that one question, I 

was reading, and I can read and it says, for 

example, here is one on Page 75 for three hundred 

and fifteen dollars and it says, "Rental equipment ' 

Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers." Another entry for 

two thousand five hundred and twenty-three 

dollars and sixty-four cents, "Machinery rental, 

materials, Caterpillar at Freer, second payment on 

barbed wire." 

Now, all I can do is read. 

Yes, sir. Well, what personal property would 

Ramiro Carrillo have individually to rent, if he 

did have any to rent; do you know? 

He has quite a bit of personal property to rent 

and equipment to rent, but I cannot tell you what 

he has. As a matter of fact, I almost can't tell 

you what all I have. It's so much. 

Well, could you read on Page 3648 the question 

Mr. Mitchell asked you at Line 13 as to the 

personal property that you had available to rent; 

Line 13, question and answer. 

"Now, your personal equipment that might have been 
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rented, where would it be kept as a usual rule?" 

And the answer. 

"There was two or three trucks and what I am tryin 

to think of the names of those tractors. Massey-

Ferguson keeps on coming back to me. It was net 

a Massey-Ferguson. It was a Farm-all, Internation 1 

Harvester or Massey-Ferguson 

I believe your earlier testimony was, and we went 

through that. You had ten or fifteen vehicles 

and we went through that and I am unclear now as 

to how many you had. Was it two or three or did 

you have ten or fifteen or how many did you have 

that Mr. Couling was renting, two or three or all 

of them? 

I don't know what all Mr. Couling was renting 

because I was not dealing directly with Mr. Coulin 

I can tell you what I have available. Like I say, 

I have a fleet that is available. 

Well, I know we went through this earlier, but if 

you had no dealings with Mr. Couling, who would 

authorize him or how would he get the key to these 

vehicles? 

They would either come from Cleofus Gonzalez or 

my brother, Ramiro. 

And you say you told one of them that it was all 
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right for all of this to take place? 

Oh, that is what I have them there for. That is 

part of the business. 

And the question was asked at Page 3659 at Line 

2. "All right. Now, Judge Carrillo, if you will, 

take figures in 91, 92 and 93, there is a total 

volume of business around four hundred thousand 

dollars." 

Now, I take it from your testimony we could -

and your answer was: "Not quite, but just 

approximately, which includes the twenty thousand 

dollars which I paid Benavides Implement and 

Hardware, which is not reflected here and this is 

only from governmental institutes --" 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me. Counsel, he 

does have a copy of that and neither do I 

and I don't know where you're quoting storped 

Thank you, Judge Meyers. I don't have a copy 

so, I need to -- thank you, Judge. I 

believe you're at line -- this is at 3 

MR. ODAM: 36 

MR. MITCHELL: What was the line, 

Mr. Odam? 

MR. ODAM: Line 3, I believe. Judge 

Carrillo has my copy. 
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MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Judge. 

(By Mr. Odam) What is the question that 

Mr. Mitchell asked you there, Judge? 

All right. 

38ll 

"No~-1, Judge Carrillo, if you will take th£ 

figures in 91, 92 and 93, there is a total voh•me 

of business of around four hundred thousand doJlar 

That is not exact, but it is an estimate. 

My answer was, "Not quite, but just 

approximately, which including the twenty thousand 

dollars that I paid Benavides Implement and 

Hardware which is not reflected here, and this is 

only from governmental agencies and myself." 

That is without the aid of an adding machine. 

I mean that is not my answer, but I approximated 

it at approximately four hundred thousand· dollars 

without an adding machine and it turned out to be 

three hundred and ninety-one thousand dollars, 

so --

Well, the first one that you referred to was aroun 

four hundred thousand that you did without the 

adding machine, would that be the same as what is 

on your R-100 that you were referring to the 

three hundred and seventy thousand? 

Yes, sir. Well, I am referring here, approximate! , 
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which including the twenty thousand dollars that 

I paid, which would be included in that, would be 

three hundred and ninety-one thousand a hundre~ 

and twenty-six dollars and thirty-three centa. 

I see, air. 

Because I included the twenty thousand dollars 

that I paid with the governmental agency. 

Fine. 

Okay. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Your Honor. 

So that the record is abundantly clear, 

Judge Carrillo is referring to Page 2 on 

Exhibit R-100, on that total. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, air . 

MR. MITCHELL: And that relates to Line 

2 through at about 10 on 3649 of the Dail} 

Copy of December 12th, 1 72. 

MR. ODAM: That's correct. 

MR. MITCHELL: Okay. Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: I think the Judge wantEd 

this. 

THE MASTER% No, I don't. I just thc·ugh 

Mr. 

Mll. MITCHELL: If it 1 s all right, I can 

let him ha-.re the Judge 1 s copy and I can look 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORT£11115 

717 ANfEL.OPE • GUARANTY BANK PL.AZA 
CORPU5 CHRISTl TEXAS '7I•Ot 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

3813 

over his shoulder, if that is all right, 

Judge Meyers, and John, you can question 

him without --

MR. ODAM: If that is all right. If 

the Master feels that he does not need to 

have the benefit of the copy. 

THE MASTER: I think I can follow 

without having the copy in front of me. It 

may be better for Mr. Mitchell and Judge 

Carrillo to have the benefit of it. 

-·---------------

•,""' 
-----------------------------------------~ 
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line 16. 

Q {By Mr. OdAm:) If you c~uld, Jud~e Carrillo, rrAd 

tht> n~tion Mr. Mitchell ooRed to you ther•. 

A "In otht>r word~. vou h•ard th• tt>stimony th8t Mr. 

a oart time ooPratton --" 

MR. MITCHELL: ''Wa!'l a oart t'f.mt> ODPra-

tion." Ht> mi111read that. 

A "Was a oart time ooeration" and the anBwer is, 

"Yes, 11ir." 

Q To •~oand, do you recall his testimony that lt wa11 

ooen oart time until Ramiro Carrillo aoor~hed 

him to do it on a full tim• ooeration from 1971 

on? In otht>r wordA, it waR not oart timt> •~ceot 

bPforP that date, do you rPcall that? 

MR. MITCHElL: Ar~umentatlve, Jud~e. 

the record sneaks to ,.,hAt the wi tneAs test i-

fi.ed to. 

MR. ODAM: That was the ouroose of my 

nuestion. The record doe!l !loeak for itself 

and thfs oarticular refert>nce ri~ht her•. 

we would submit you heard the tt>stimony that 

Benavides Imotement and Hardware was a oart 
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t1m• nn~ration and t~at wa~ nrfor tn t~P 

ti•• Rantfrn Camllo t"a•• andS~tw him. Tht"n 

~~ ownt"d un tn • full tim~ basi~ aft~r that. 

A That was nnt my undt"rstand•n~ with Mr. Coultn~. 

t ton, 

If you eould, rPad tht" 

nu~~tfnn on 1int" 9 and your an~wt"r tht"rPto. 

A "An~ if you add •ll nf that uo, a11 Mr. Odem did 

~nzPrs, end I eame to a total of !lnmt"thin~ l{kt" 

thirty thousand, if that eorrPet?" And tht" 

an!lwt"r was, "Thirty thousand?". 

Q Was that thirty thousand dollars that you rPfPrrPd 

t"ation today fs to whet t"7tPnt dops that inelu~r 

thP oayment you madt" for thost" root olow!l or wotld 

you •~rPP that thirty thousand doPa include oey· 

m~nts for root olow!l? 

A ThP naymt"ntl'l t~at I madP. to Mr. Coul tn~ wert" fo1· 

thP rPntel on both thP bulldo~Pr~ end thP root 

olow!'l, 

Q So tht" fJUt"!'l tion addPd on, a !I rP~ards tht" bulldo:~prs 

that tht" thirty thousand would bt" not only tht" 

bu11dnr.Prs, but tht" root olowt~~? 
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A Y~", "'r. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Hnnor. m~ty I h~v~ 

lin~ 14, •!'I •n the form nf " «ru.-st{on. It 

Fays, "Thirty thousand" and th~n th~re is 

e frUttflt•nn mark. 

it may hav" !lnunded Uk~ " ~f"cl~tratory statP• 

m~nt. H.- c:~ty!'l thirty thousand f.n a oue!ltfon 

Fnrm. 

MR. ODAM: All rt~ht. Let's ~o fdthPr. 

What fA the n~xt ~uestion. 

A ThP nP'll't nuP!'Itinn ts. ''Wt>ll, the twenty thousan~ 

that you had oald?" an~ th~ ans~er is "And th• 

f'lf'VPn thousan~ hf' r•ceivf'd from the county." 

Q Go aheAd with the nPxt nupstinn and Ant~~wer. 

A "That h ri~ht, thet is thirty-on .. tl,out~~end 

doll~trs." An~ the answr {!II, "I am talkln~ ~tbnu• 

bu!lfnet~~s." ThPn thE' neYt «ruE'stion is, "I am 

tAlktn~ about ch•cks you rE'cPivf'd, this !'Ieven 

t'lOUP:and four hundred seventy-l'll~ ~nllar!l was 

sll that I -- chf'cks that I recf'ivf'd." 

Q Sn irre!ll~ective nf wh8t you testifie~ to, the 

thirty thouRsnd or the thirty-one thoussnd, thosP 

were ~•ymentl'l for the Cstf'r~illars and root plows? 

A YeA, ~ tr. 
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Q And not as whttt w~ may oirk uo from t~~se ans~s. 

which may be nu~stions, but it Is for bulldozers 

11nd root olowR? 

A Y£>s. both. 

Q I refPr you to oa~e 1656. 

Now, th£> nu£>stton I r£>fer you to h~r~ is 

l'lt line 4. 

Would you rf!'l'ld this s~riPs of ~uesttons 

and 11nswer~ l!nd l~t's see if --

A '~t l'lny rate. ft does refl£>et thP I.M.P .• w~ich 

i.s for Imolem£>nt. fs that correct?" And th£> 

answPr is. "Yes. sir." 

Then t~~ n£>xt ftUestion. "All ri~~t." And 

the snswer, "I notice this is as of November of 

197?. he oaid r£>nta1 to me of nine hundred dollars 

snd hP coll~ct£>d sooroximatel1'-- w~ll. th£> 

l'lnt~~wer i.s, "Aooroximately sf.Y. thoul!utnd or seven 

thous11nd dollars." 

Q W£>11, ~o ahPad with that nPxt nupstion and answrr. 

A "He oaid you how much rent l'l~tti.n ?" And th~ 

answer is. "Nin~ thousand dollArs." 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse m£>, it was in 

obvious error and the answer was, if you look 

over, "I m~an nine hundred dollars." 

Q Well, I see now, end at the time I went throu~h 
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thi 1'1 i_t wl!ls not c1 E>l!lr to mP And nrobl!lbly by your 

2 ~reol!lr~tion of R-100, and if I rE>fer you to R-100 

3 do you havt> f t? 

4 A YP!l. 

5 Q Th~t tht> ninP thouRand you rt>fPrrt>d to wl!ls not 

6 from tht> county. but thP tot.t~1 Amount a~ you out 

7 ht>rP for all thrt>e Pntttit>~, is that correct? 

8 A YPs, i.t showR sonroximl!ltely ninp thousl!lnd dollars. 

9 0 s.., a~Z~tin --

10 A To bf' Pl':act, ninP thousand ni.nt>tePn doll~trl'l twf'nty 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

ct>nts. 

_MR. MITCHELL: Dot>s the Court follow 

on R·lOO? 

THE WITNESS: I am re&din~ from line ,,, 

I l!lnoroximated it at nine 

thousand. 

17 Q I was not clear from reac:lin~ the record myself. 

18 If you reff'r to the ni.nt> thousand from Duv"l 

19 County or all of thPm, then -- well, we can see 

.20 all of tht>m arE> totaled. 

fl A Yes, sir. 

22 

23 

24 

MR. MITCHELL: And it i.s not nine 

thousand, it fs nine thousand nineteen dollars 

twenty ct'nts. 
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No~, I r~f~r you to na~~ ~657. 

2 

3 Q Now, w~ have t;p bPn~fit of your R-100 also and 

4 this mi~ht clarify ft. 

5 A YPs. !'lir. 

6 Q At oa2e 1657, rea~ the ~UPstion that is at linp 9, 

7 !)lea sf'. 

8 A "We wi 11 1 ook at the Benavi.de!'l WatPr District and 

9 ~ee if hP didn't collPct somP monPy from it for 

10 rPntal of pnutomPnt?" And the 1.1nswer i.s, "Yt>s. '' 

11 And thP nPlft nuPsti.on ls, "Tta:-.- 111re Pftuioment 

12 rPntals on it, arpn 1 t th.-rP, on R-92?" And the 

13 anS'-1l' is, "In November tht>rP are a-p-proximatt>ly 

14 fifteen hundred dollar!'! here." 

15 Q Now, referrin~ to R-93, it i.s not clE>ar there 

16 what ypar you are reff>rrin2 to. 

17 A Nov~mber, 1972, and I think we are talkln~ about 

18 that year, which was the same one l!ls the total 

19 of the ninP thousand dollars, and I aooro1rimated 

20 that at fiftPen hundred dollars and it shows, 

21 with referPncP to Exhibi.t R-100, that tt was 

22 et~ht thousand onP hundred ninety-two dollars 

23 forty-four cents. 

U Q Nnw, tookin2 at thP eeuioment rentals, therP are 

25 those on i.t, too. aren't there, and your answer 
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was aooroximatPly fifteen hundr~d dol~s. 

How do you kno~ what that money on R-9~ vas 

for, I~ that ~ale~ to the wat~r district or 

th~ r~ntal~ or tf th~y rent@d anythtn~. what was 

it rented accordin~ to R-93? 

A Accordin~ to R-9~. in Nov~mber, it Al-tow!l invoicPs 

584, ":'54, 451, 1498 on 11-13-72 and materials, 

su~olies an~ ~ouioment rental. 

11-1~-12, invoi.c~ number 14~5, Pnulnm~mt 

rPntal, Benavi.d~A ImnlPmPnt and HardwarP. 

Q So I take it ~e ftrst Pntries on oage 3, those 

may be aonarP.ntly for pouioment r~ntals, anoarently 

for materials and suoolies and thP one on the 

bottom of t"he oap~, tnvoices, we don't know what 

those are? 

A No. 

Q Would you agree, like on R-91, that the watPr 

tHstrfd:, th~ work-uo she~t, R-9', i. s not necessari 1 

a total accumulation of thP total eoutoment 

rented to th~ wat~r district, only that? 

A I can't tell you. That i~ all It shows. Ther~ 

might be some more, I don't know. 

Q Well, you take R-91, the first entry for five 

hundred ninety-four dollars. 

MR. MITCHELL: Do you see where he is 
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talk in~ about? 

THE WITNESS: Nn, !li.r. 

Q The ff.rst ""~e of R-93. 

A The fir"t t)IIJ!e of R-91? 

Q Ye"· !'I fT. 

A A11 ri.~ht. The year 1971? 

Q Ye!'l, !'li.r. 

How much f. s tht t &mount for? 

A Whi.ch line? 

Q The f~rst entry. 

A Fi.vP hundrecl ni.nPty•four dollars ninetyofivl' cen:s. 

Q Wh&t was thAt for? 

A Suooltes and material a~somPthi.~~ el!'le Benavides. 

Q It looks like W. S. /Syste-ms. 

A That may be. 

Q That {!'I WlltPr s or tn kleors systPmR. 

A WPll, I am nnt ~otn~ to SOf'CUlate. 

Q Invoice- number 10? 

A YPs, sir. 

Q Do you know whe-ther or not that was eonutomeont 

rPnt~tl? 

A No, !lir, I do not. 

Q Invoice number 49, do you know ~hetheor that was 

e~ufoment rentAl? 

A I don't know. 
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Q LPt'~ ~o throu~h ~nd t~kP thP sPven hundred aftd 

fifty doll8r entrlPs, onP on June 15, 1971, 

A June, 1971? 

Q June 15, 1971, for seven hun~red fifty dollars. 

A YPs, !'lir. 

Q And what wa~ that for? 

Q LPt'R take the ~PVPn hundred and fifty dollars 

and ski~ down and when you ~et to a !'Ieven hundred 

fffty dollar ~ayment, t~ll me what that is for. 

A I can tell you what it says here. 

Q That t~ what I mean. 

A SPven hundre~ fifty dollars on --

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, I am reluet111nt ·-

it i~ conceded that Jud~e Carrillo has no 

oPrsonal knowled~e of R-9,. I don't think 

he can add anythln~ exceot to readin~ f~om 

:lt. 

I have no objf>ction as to ll•hat it ~ays, 

but I ~onder if.we are ~l'llnin~ anythin~ from 

this. 

MR. ODAM: May I comment? 

THE MAS~: Yes, ~!r. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, the record the 

other day, and because of the record that 
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el!faminatton. As th• Cnurt kncws, from lf.!ll~n-

rental. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am ~orry, I didn't 

mony was in this nostur~. 

Coun~el for the Ellfamin~r has Droduced 

rental. Th•r• wa8 no busines~ known as A 

viable business and k~ as Benevides ImDlr-

ment And Har~ware. It was e child of • 

consDiraey. I was slmnly catlin~ to the 

attention of the Court that there was two 

nieces of evidence that were contradictory. 

THE MASTER: I thou2~t I stated on Pri~ey 

that I stated into the record w~at I under-

stand t~ be the relevancy of your examinati~n 

of Ju~~· Carrillo with resoect to 90, 91, 9~ 

and 9,. 
CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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MR. MITCHELL: Ri~ht. 

THE MASTER: And you a~reed that was the 

thrust and ~8rt of the thrust of it was just 

what you ~aid. that whilP it mi~ht not all be 

eftui~ment rental, there was a ~rest deal of 

money that renresented enut~ment rental an~. 

of cour~e, you can look on those Exhibits, 

and there are many entries sayin~ rent. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, slr. 

THE MASTER: I do encoura~e both side~ 

to try not to just routinely read Exhibits 

that I and the Commission and the Su~reme 

Court can read as well, into the record. 

If Counsrlbelieves there has been an 

inference left that he needs to correct, I 

am~in~ to let him correct it, so the objec-

tion is overruled. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would like to reftuest 

that I have a co~y of the daily copy of Mr. 

Coulin~s' testimony on the point where 

I had him on cross-examination. When I do 

call him back, now, it is a different ball-

~ame and the record indicates there is 

rental eftui~ment. 

THE MASTER: You identify today what 
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you vent end tf I h•v• ft I wtll aek• tt 

evell•bl• tn you end if Cnunspl has •t, hP 

v'll m•k• ft avatlablP to vnu. I don't hav~ 

that to th~ Judtct•l Qu•lfftcatfons Commi~-

11ton. 

MR. MITCHELL: YPR, th• rPenrd should 

not b•en, uo to tht.fll ootnt, dt.t~~commodpd, but 

I am now, b•cause if I out Coulfn2 back on 

the stand, h• fs gotn~ to havp to answer thoRP 

nutl!ltion!ll. 

THE MASTER: We ar• ~otn~ tn mPet herP 

this aft•rnoon, or Mr. Odam's motel room or 

mine or yourR so that we may 1ointly call 

Bob McGinnh. If at that time you can out 

your ft.n~•r on thP day that you want, th•n 

I will ,.t you either throu2h Mr. Odam or 

throutth my own cooteR what•v•r you went, jt1st 

tell me. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

MR. MITCHELL: It ,.,ould be that tellltimony I 
I 
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and I will ofnootnt tt. I will reQuest it 

later oursuant to thP in~uctions of the 

Ct'Jurt. 

MR. ODAM: If I mi~ht. Your H~nor, 

without being repetitious. as I say the 

state of the record is that the inference 

was left that all of this inet'Jme was rental 

income. 

THE MASTER: And you are now showing 

there was some that was not and you are 

entitled to do that. 

MR. MITCHELL: We have not taken the 

position ~n this case as to whether it was 

or was not. Coulin~'s testimony was that 

there was no eouipment to rent, so we have 

no position one way or thP other. 

THE "MASTER: Well. i.t tR an Exhi.bH 

that may be created by somPone emoloyed by 

the Attorney General's office. It means it 

is your E:,rhibt t. 

MR. MITCHELL: But the record reflects 

it was delivered pursuant to a subpoena. 

THE MASTER: Correct. 

MR. ODAM: Well, can we then stioulatP. 

Counsel, that in li~ht of Judge Carrilln's 
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tPstimony, that R-91, 91 en~ 91, as w~lt a~ 

2 R-100, doe~ not n~cPs~arily reflPct totally 

3 

MR. MITCHELL: I would ~tioulatp it 

5 
do~s not reflPct all of his income, becausP 

6 

7 THE MASTER: That w8s not t~e reeuest. 

a The ~tiouletion was, do you a~ree that 

9 R-91, 92 8nd 9' as welt as R-100 rPflect 

10 income, or rather ~ros~ recetots, as o~~osed 

11 to income, ta~able income, reflects receiot~ 

12 

13 but do not reflect 1ust e~clusively rental 

14 income. 

15 MR. MITCHELL: I am not i.n a oositton 

16 to stioulate that, because I don't know the 

17 reflection of it. 

18 THE MASTER: That is fine. 

19 Ynu may oroceed, Mr. Odam. 

20 MR. ODAM: It is because of that that 

21 I feel it is necessary to develoo the record, 

22 sinee the ~tioulation cannot be done. 

23 Let me develoo one other ooint in li~l1t 

24 of that. 

~ Q (By Mr. Odam:) Jud~e Carrillo, I would like to 
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I • 
I 

s II 
/I ffr~t nf all, an~·~ will count thPm off and ••• 

• li il 
7 

r 
8 WP will start back with th• first on,., 

9 

10 

II 

12 A In invoice number 10? 

13 Q That doea not tn~tcat~ one way or th• other? 

lt A Nn. sir. 

15 

11 A 5·1\-71? 

17 Q Yt"fl, sir • 

•• A It dof'l!l not tndf.cate on,. way nr the ntltf'r • 

•• i.nvotce number 49 . 

• Q All rt~ht. sir. I think tn li~ht of the tlae 

21 and where w~ stand today. I would ltke to --

22 w~lt. let's ~o throu~h end l!lf'f' how many ~ev•n 

IS .. co .. t"nce tomorrow. my first ftUestton will be 

15 

---tt---------------------------- --··-
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rf"ntlll!ll. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thi!ll is -- w~ are ~~in~ 

11nd WetPr District 

THE WITNESS: All of wl-tich I can tell 

a~ not identified other than invoice number 

MR. MITCHELL: In vtew of the feet this 

witness has testified he has no knowled~e 

of the Coultn~ business with Duval County And 

it, ff that {!II necessary. 

THE MASTER: Well, it may be that tt 

could be done that way, however, he is only 

askin~ htm to count. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, that is ri~ht. 

Q Let's count and see how many there are for RevPn 

hundred fifty dollars. 

THE ~STE R: No, let's do that at the 

recess. 

MR. ODAM: That is my st11tement, not 

count nnw. 

Q Jud~e C11rrillo, on my renuest, number one would 

be for the Reven hundred and fifty dollar items 

11nd number t.wo, of those ttems, how many of tht>m 

are stilted t~ be e~uioment rentals. That 1!11 ay 
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fir~t two nue~tion~ tomorro~. how many tot~l 

•ven hunrlred fifty dollar item~ and how many ~ur-

oort to be for e~u~ument rent~l? 

A AH rh;ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: M~y we extract R-93 so 

we can do that? 

THE MASTER: You don't h~vf' a co~y of i. t? 

MR. MITCHELL: No. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, i.n 1t~ht of the 

testi.mony of this witnf'!';~ uertain~n~ to the 

rpadin~ back from last Friday and today also 

and Mr. Coultn~'s tf'~timony of no POUi~ment 

to rP.nt, an~ I stand by that, and I differPn-

t~ate betwef'n those ~nd 1ncome rentals, that 

I would sup~est, as this Court knows, and I 

would rf'Sf'~rch thf' law ff necpssary, but t~at 
<'-- v,'~ 

i~ to what I would refer to as ~ you -- I 

think i.t would be helofu1 to thP Court if 

we, in a D.P.S. car or any way a~ a grou~. 

made a viP'~-' of the scene in Benavi.des, Texas. 

We h•ve in ttuPstion what the Benavtdpo; 

Im~lement and HardwarP looks like and the 

Farm and Ranch Store looks like. I have 

never seen {t myself. I havP. in mind a 

warehouse that has vehicles and next door to 
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th~ county t'rE>etnet, 11nd the Farm and R11neh 

Suooly th11t has vehicle~ ta rE>nt and Benavides 

Imolement anrl Hardware, hE> says he doesn't 

have vE>hicle8, and it l~aves 11 nuestton as 

to 11 ~cenE> that I think is within the rules 

of ~rocedurp to drive ovE>r therE> and look at. 

MR. MITCHELL: I will not a~rPe to a 

1ury viE>w under those ctrcumstancPs, Judge. 

Am I chl'lr~ed .. d.th some thin~ wronJt therE>? 

MR. ODAM: No, the Farm and Ranch Store 

11nd Ben11vides Im~lement and Hardware only. 

MR. MITCHELL: I don't see anythin~ abut 

the Farm and Ranch or Benavides Imolement 

and Hardware. 

MR. ODAM: Testimony has develoof'd about 

his t'&rtnershto interest. 

THE MASTER: I think a view by 11 

Mast:t>r, as oo,osed to a view by a .1ury, mny 

be ~omethtn~ I should consider. I am only 

~oln~ to consider it. I will orob11bly wa~t 

to look at some law, but I think 1ury vie~s 

11re wlthf.n 11 dlscreti.on of the Jud~e tn the 

trl~tl of a case, but therE> ts ~reatt>r ~is-

cretlon where there ts no jury. I don't 

know that it ts necessary, but I will 
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it. 

MR. ODAM: That is ~11. 

MR. MITCHELL: For th~ record. I would 

nnt a~ree to it unl~ss th~ Commission as a 

body would b~ there end th~r~ ts e statem•n: 

nf rrl~vancy of what Farm and Ranch has to 

do wfth the Articl~s or S"ecificattons and 

c~rteinly wh~t they have to do on the rete-

vent years, 71, 72, 73 end 74. 

THE MASTER: Jud~e Carrillo, you have 

been asked to do several thtn~s this after-

noon. 

One is to count, on that Exhibit, how 

many seven tundre~ fifty dollar items there 

are and notf' which items ere for rental, iR 

that ri~ht? 

MR. ODAM: Yrs, si.r, eouipment rentals. 

THE MM~TER: Then you werr asked by Ms. 

Levatino to ~o throu~h th~ welfare books thRt 

you have &n example of, tn R-99, is tlw t cor-

rrct? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, ~tr, the forty•fou · 

units. 

THE MASTER: And see, in8ofar as you can, 

who si~ned your nemr or si~ned on your behalf, 
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thoR~ hookA. 

that Mr. G~or~e Zertuche, Junior, ~td somp 

~nd Minerva c~~·~ did ~omP. 

MR. MITCHELL~ Mr. Coutin~·~ mi!ltress, 

!lhP he~ been fdentifte~ As. 

MR. ODAM: You had to ~~t that in therP, 

didn't you? 

THE WITNESS: I ml~ht identify for thP 

rP~or~. I didn't ~uthori~p her to do !ln. 

MS. LEVATINO: I don't want to e~~and 

thiA r~ftuest. but should Jud~e Carrillo find 

!lome ftgur~~. other than the three we have 

mPntionPd, ~hat you mark tho~e, would you do 

th~tt? 

THE WHNESS: 

I em sunnoRed to ~" 

my name nr wh~t ~nd che~k R-9~ to find out 

11bnut thP ~even hundred fi. fty dol tar i.nvoi cPA 

THE MASTER: When you hl!lve a A PVen hu11-

rlred fifty do11ar fi~urP, ReP whether or not 

there i~ a qotlltion indicatin~ it wa~ rental. 

Th11t ito all. That ~~ one ,ob really. 
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THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MS. LEVATINO: I bel{eve I also asked 

him to check into the tfme soan of the dates 

of those for~four Exhibits. 

THE MASTER: Yes, you did, you wante~ to 

know how far they went. 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes, when they be~an and 

ended. 

THE WITNESS: All ri~ht. sir. I will do 

my best. 

THE MASTER: Well, that is all you can 

do. 

THE WITNESS: Mi~ht I su~~est somethin~? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

THE WITNESS: As oooosed to countf.n~ 

them, I might out a mark on nne of these and 

~how which ones they are instead of tryift~ 

to write somethin~ down and tomorrow I can 

show which ones have a mark. I think it 

would be nuicker to ~o down the tfne and 

chf"ek them off. 

THEMASTER: Fine. That is all right 

wf.th me. 

We need to meet back hPrP and try to 

~et Mr. McGinnis now. 
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MR. MITCHELL: We have a federal court 

annnintment, Jud~e. thi"' ttft.-rnoon. l 
We are, durin~ the course nf all of this -

THE MASTER: Does this need to be on 

the record? 

MR. MITCHELL: I think it shout~ be. 

THE MASTER: Fine. 

MR. MITCHELL: Durin~ the oeriod of time 

we have had an aoolication for a stay and 

order entered and, I mi~ht add, a very ·onerou 

order entered by the 1ud~e. which we are 

tryin~ to comoly with at two o'clock as it 

is set uo this afternoon. It deoends on 

whether this man remains at liberty. 

It ts my concern and we have an tpooint-

ment to oresent a matter to the clerk of the 

court between now and two o'clock, is that 

nrrect? 

THE WITNESS: Sometime, yes. I don't 

know how ton~ we witt be there. 

THE MASTER: The reason I wanted you 

nresent, Mr. Mitcb(l, it was yor subooena 

and 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTER: I can describe it to Mr. 
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MeGtnnis, i.f you wi.ll just write down wha1 

it is. 

MR. MITCHEL~j/\X j~ink he took tt wi1:h 

hi.m, Jud~e Meyers,•' t.be of:fteer that was out 

here. 

THE MASTER: Well, could you write out 

on a ~ieee of na~er what you want me to aqk 

Mr. McGinnts. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTE R: I can do that on my own 

and. I was tnvitin~ you only to be here. 

MR. MITCHELL: I knew that and I was 

concerned from ~otn~ into this other matter, 

but we have ~n in 8 continuous --

THE MASTER: Do you have the subnoena? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, we do have it, 

THE MASTER: All ri.~ht. I will deRcribe 

it in the exact words for Mr. McGinniR. 

We will be in recess until tomorrow 

morninp;. 

(Whereunon, at 1:05 n.m., December 15, 

1975, the he~rinp; wa~ in recess until 8:30 

a.m. December 16, 1975.) 
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	Witnesses
	Judge O.P. Carrillo




